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Associate Commissioner

December 17, 2013

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION X2 / / UJ
VG, Tetsal Wd

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care
Services, Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services to enter into Agreements with multiple dental
contractors to provide limited dental treatment to adults age sixty (60) and older that will be participating
in a dental screening project. No maximum or minimum client and service volume is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the price limitation among all Agreements is $22,309 each State Fiscal Year for a total of
$44,618. The Agreements are effective date of Governor and Executive Council approval through June
30, 2015.

VENDOR LOCATION
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Manchester, NH
Families First of the Greater Seacoast Portsmouth, NH
Goodwin Community Health Somersworth, NH
Tri County Community Action Program, Inc. Berlin, NH

Funding to support this request is available in the following account in State Fiscal Years 2014
and 2015 and with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and between State Fiscal
Years, if needed and justified.

05-95-48-481010-8917 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, HEALTH PROMOTION
CONTRACTS

Flec:I Class/Account Class Title Total Amount
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $22,309
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 Contracts for Program_Services $22,309

$44,618
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EXPLANATION

This Requested Action seeks approval of 4 of 6 agreements that will ensure the provision of
dental services to older adults who do not have resources for dental care and are in immediate need of
dental intervention to relieve pain and infection. The Department anticipates that the remaining two
agreements will be presented at upcoming Governor and Executive Council meetings.

During the prior biennium Governor and Executive Council approved the Department to
establish a consultant list of New Hampshire licensed dentists and to enter into agreements with them
as necessary. The Department entered into five Agreements with dentists/dental practices to provide
dental treatments. The Department sent a letter to these five previous contractors inviting them to
participate in the Oral Health Program in State Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015 and subsequently released
a Request for Applications on October 17, 2013 to solicit additional dentists to participate in providing
dental services to clients in additional areas of the state. The Request for Applications resulted in one
additional dental practice in the Portsmouth area.

Individuals receiving dental services were screened in advance by Public Health dental
hygienists working under the auspices of the Department’'s Oral Health Program. The Oral Health
Program Manager will refer these eligible individuals to participating dental clinics/practices to receive
needed care and treatment.

There is a $1,500 limit per client per year for dental treatment. The current dental fee schedule
has been updated to include coverage of Periodontal scaling/root planing procedures to treat gum
disease and/or infection. (See attached fee schedule).

Nineteen clients received needed dental treatment and services in the first phase of this dental
collaboration between the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services and Division of Public Health.
Participating clients received a variety of dental procedures to address and alleviate pain and infection
to facilitate their ability to once again eat and chew comfortably.

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine to not authorize this request, adults age
60 and older with immediate dental need and without access to care will continue to face barriers to
dental treatment and remain at high risk for compromised health. Oral health interventions could
improve the oral health of older adults, support their well-being and prevent the need for more costly
care. Those seeking relief of pain and infection commonly go to hospital emergency departments.
Patients are treated with medication to ease the pain and infection, but the underlying cause of the
problem is not resolved.

The performance of this program will continued to be measured by the number of identified
older adults that actually receive dental treatment to relieve their pain, swelling and/or infection.

The geographic area to be served is statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Administration for Community Living, Special Programs for the
Aging Title Ill, Part D Disease Prevention and Health Promotion Services.
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

§{W /f /@5%

Sheri L. Rockburn
Acting Associate Commissioner

Approved by: ﬂk

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner k_)

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Oral Health Screening Program Sites

COUNTY AND LOCATION SITE NAME

Belknap/Merrimack Counties:

Franklin Twin Rivers Intergenerational Program
Laconia Laconia Senior Center

Suncook Suncook Senior Center

Hopkinton Slusser Senior Center

New London

Chapin Senior Center

Carroll County:

Wakefield Greater Wakefield Resource Center
Cheshire County:

Jaffrey Jaffrey Friendly Congregate Meals
Coos County:

Berlin Holiday Center

Berlin Berlin Senior Center

North Conway Gibson Center

Grafton County:

Lebanon Upper Valley Senior Citizens Center
Littleton Littleton Area Senior Center

North Haverhill Horse Meadow Senior Center

Orford Orford Area Senior Services
Plymouth Plymouth Regional Senior Center
Hillsborough County:
Nashua Nashua Sr. Activity Center
Manchester William B. Cashin Center
Rockingham County:

Exeter Exeter Senior Center-Congregate Meal Site
Hampton Hampton Congregate Meal Site
Newmarket Sunrise Sunset Activity Center

Salem Ingram Senior Center

Strafford County:

Rochester Rochester Area Senior Citizen Center
Somersworth Charpentier Apartments

Sullivan County:

Claremont Earle Bourden Center-Elderly Housing
Newport Newport Senior Center
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Code

D0140
D0150
D0210
D0220
D0230
D0330
D2140
D2150
D2160
D2161
D2330
D2331
D2332
D2335
D2391
D2392
D2393
D2394
D4341
D4355
D5110
D5120
D5130
D5140
D5211
D5212
D5650
D5410
D5411
D5421
D5422
D5750
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Senior Oral Health Program

Dental Fee Schedule

Procedure

Limited oral evaluation
Comprehensive oral evaluation
Intraoral-complete series
Intraoral-Periapical 1st film
Intraoral-Periapical ea. add'l
Panoramic film

Amalgam - 1 surface

Amalgam - 2 surface

Amalgam - 3 surface

Amalgam - 4/4+ surface

Resin-1 surface anterior

Resin-2 surface anterior

Resin-3 surface anterior
Resin-4/4+ surface anterior
Resin-1 surface posterior

Resin-2 surface posterior

Resin-3 surface posterior
Resin-4/4+ surface posterior
Periodontal scaling/root planing (per quadrant)
Full mouth debridement
Complete denture-maxillary
Complete denture-mandibular
Immediate denture-maxillary
Immediate denture-mandibular
Maxillary partial-resin base
Mandibular partial-resin base

Add tooth to existing partial
Adjust complete denture, maxillary
Adjust complete denture, mandibular
Adjust partial denture, maxillary
Adjust partial denture, mandibular
Reline complete maxillary denture

Fee
60.00
62.00
96.00
15.00
10.00

$ 83.00

$ 150.00

$ 155.00

$ 180.00

$200.00

$131.00

$ 143.00

$ 147.00

$ 165.00

$ 150.00

$ 155.00

$ 180.00

$200.00

$100.00
$90.00
$800.00

$ 800.00

$ 875.00

$ 875.00

$ 600.00

$600.00

$ 68.00

$ 65.00

$ 65.00

$ 55.00

$

$

@ hH H PH &N

55.00
244.00



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Code
D5751
D5760
D5761
D7140

D7210
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Senior Oral Health Program

Dental Fee Schedule

Procedure

Reline complete mandibular denture
Reline maxillary partial denture
Reline mandibular partial denture
Extraction-erupted/exposed

Extraction-surgical-imp bony

Fee
$ 244.00
$ 85.00
$ 85.00
$ 150.00

$ 225.00



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Senior Oral Health Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Department of Health and Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
30 Exchange Street

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Berlin, NH 03570
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

Number
603-752-7001 05-95-48-481010-89170000- June 30, 2015 $44,618.00

102-500731

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

l ° B -

Mcn’q Maqc,nancalcla, HAmlmdrd\or C03-271-G909¢
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

L \JZ G Michael Coughlin, Chief Executive Officer

\ LM_,U. ‘L/\ ( 9\ g ,

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of NH , County-of __Coos

On_ December 12, 2013 , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in
the capacity indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signat f Notary Public or Justice of the P
ignature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace SUZANNE C. FRENCH

Notary Public - New Hampshire
ﬁ i @ W My Commission Expires June 19, 2018

1.13.2 ﬁ’ﬂme an 1(’ of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Suzanne C. French, Notary

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

. Acting
gfw % @BW Sher ). ﬁm)cburn) Hssorc):nd}e

Cemmission el

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attgrney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

1.18  YApproval by tyGovernor and Executive Council

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT,
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the night to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States 1ssue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.,

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: M ’
Date: j 2.



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES,

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
labilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence, and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials:
Date:



certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers” Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY, In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: “’ 1 C,

Date: :mg—_



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Exhibit A

1.

Scope of Services

Program Name: Senior Oral Health Program
1.1. Purpose:

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide dental treatment to adults age 60 years or older
in need of early, imminent or immediate care. The goal of the program is to: 1) identify adults
age 60 and over who are in obvious need of dental care and treatment, as described above,
and who lack resources to pay for care; 2) coordinate needed dental care and treatment
with a participating dentist/dental practice; and 3) alleviate pain, infection and suffering,
and/or restore individuals’ ability to eat comfortably.

Under the Senior QOral Health Program, a licensed community-based dental hygienist,
working under the supervision of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS),
Division of Public Health Services’ (DPHS) Oral Health Program Manager, shall conduct
dental screenings at designated senior center/congregate meal sites. The hygienist shall
screen and identify older adults with urgent need (pain and/or infection) or otherwise in need
of urgent or early care (within the next several weeks) and will provide this information to the
DHHS DPHS’ Oral Health Program Manager. Older adults identified as being in need of
early, imminent or immediate care shall be referred by the DHHS DPHS’ Oral Health
Program Manager to a participating dental practice to receive dental treatment. To ensure
that individuals follow-through with the referral, the Oral Health Program Manager shall
coordinate with the participating dental practice and the individual to facilitate appointments
as needed.

2. Provision of Services:
Under this agreement dentists treating individuals referred to their practices shalil:
2.1 Accept referrals from the DHHS DPHS’ Oral Health Program Manager.
2.2 Complete an oral health assessment and develop a treatment plan based on identified

needs.

2.3 Schedule appointments and follow up for dental services based on the treatment plan.
2.4 Perform, with the individual’s approval, dental services and treatment.

3. Licensing Requirements:
Dentist(s) performing services under this agreement, including any subcontract agreements,
must possess a current dental license issued by the State of New Hampshire Board of
Dental Examiners.

4. Equal Access to services:
To ensure equal access to quality services, the Contractor, when feasible and approprate,
shall make reasonable efforts to provide clients of limited English proficiency (LEP) with
interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English as
their primary language and whose skills in listening to, speaking, or reading English are
such that they are unable to adequately understand and participate in the care or in the
services provided to them without language assistance.

Exhibit A Contractor's Initials: (1 &
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program
Exhibit A

5. DHHS’ Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services’ (BEAS) State Registry:
Contractors which are licensed, certified or funded by the DHHS shall meet the
requirements of RSA 161-F: 49 Registry, VII, which requires that all employers of programs
that are licensed, certified, or funded by the NH Department of Health and Human Services
to provide services, submit the name of prospective employees who may have client contact
for review against the registry of founded reports of abuse, neglect, and exploitation of
incapacitated adults.

6. Contract Monitoring:
The State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services shall monitor the
contract by conducting announced and/or unannounced site reviews for compliance with the
terms in the agreement for up to four (4) years from the end period of the most recent
contract.

7. Entire Agreement:

The following documents are incorporated by reference into this Agreement and they
constitute the entire Agreement between the State and the Contractor: General Provisions
(P-37), Exhibit A Scope of Services, Exhibit B Purchase of Services, Exhibit B-1 Dental Fee
Schedule, Exhibit C Special Provisions, Exhibit C-1 Additional Special Provisions, Exhibit D
Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace, Exhibit E Certification Regarding Lobbying,
Exhibit F Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters,
Exhibit G Certification Regarding the American’s With Disabilities Act Compliance, Exhibit H
Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke, Exhibit | Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act Business Associate Agreement, and Exhibit J Certification
Regarding The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Compliance. In the
event of any conflict or contradiction between or among the Agreement documents, the
documents shall control in the above order of precedence.

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank

Exhibit A Contractor’s Initials: JAM ¢
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. Subject to the Contractor's compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the
Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services shall reimburse the Contractor for actual dental
service(s) provided by the contractor to eligible individuals, resulting from referrals made by
the DPHS Oral Health Program Manager. Reimbursement shall be based on the Senior
Oral Health Program, Dental Fee Schedule, identified in Exhibit B-1.

2. Reimbursement Limits per Patient. Reimbursement is limited to $1,500 per patient per
state fiscal year, depending on the availability of funding. Any additional treatment that
exceeds the limit per patient shall be at the sole expense of the dentist.

3. Price Limitation. This Agreement is one of multiple Agreements that will serve the Senior
Oral Health Program. No maximum or minimum client and service volume is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the price limitation among all Agreements is identified in Block 1.8 of the P-37
for the duration of the Agreement.

4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that payment under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any
Federal or State Law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been satisfactory completed in accordance with the terms and condition of
this Agreement.

5. The funding source for this Agreement for Dental Services is 100% federal funds from the
Administration for Community Living, Title Ill, Part D, Disease Prevention and Health
Promotion Services, CFDA 93.043.

6. Contract dentists shall complete and submit Dental Claim Forms provided by the Bureau of
Elderly and Adult Services for each client, due within 156 days from the date of treatment.

Dental Claim forms shall be sent to:

Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services

Supervisor, Community Programs and Long-Term Care
Governor Hugh Gallen Office Park, Brown Building

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, N.H. 03301

7. The contractor shall have or secure a vendor number with the State of New Hampshire to
receive payment from the DHHS.

8. The Contractor shall comply with the necessary steps established by the Department for
making payments to vendors using Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT). Exceptions to using
EFT for payment shall be made upon prior approval of the BEAS Financial Manager or
designee.

Exhibit B Contractor's Initials: WL C
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Exhibit B-1

Senior Oral Health Program
Dental Fee Scheduie

Code Procedure Fee

D0140 Limited oral evaluation $ 60.00
D0150 Comprehensive oral evaluation $ 62.00
D0210 Intraoral-complete series $ 96.00
D0220 Intraoral-Periapical 1st film $ 15.00
D0230 Intraoral-Periapical ea. add'l $ 10.00
D0330 Panoramic film $ 83.00
D2140 Amalgam - 1 surface $ 150.00
D2150 Amalgam - 2 surface $ 155.00
D2160 Amalgam - 3 surface $ 180.00
D2161 Amalgam - 4/4+ surface $ 200.00
D2330 Resin-1 surface anterior $131.00
D2331 Resin-2 surface anterior $143.00
D2332 Resin-3 surface anterior $ 147.00
D2335 Resin-4/4+ surface anterior $ 165.00
D2391 Resin-1 surface posterior $ 150.00
D2392 Resin-2 surface posterior $ 155.00
D2393 Resin-3 surface posterior $ 180.00
D2394 Resin-4/4+ surface posterior $ 200.00
D4341 Periodontal scaling/root planing (per quadrant) $100.00
D4355 Fuli mouth debridement $90.00
D5110 Complete denture-maxillary $ 800.00
D5120 Complete denture-mandibular $ 800.00
D5130 Immediate denture-maxillary $875.00
D5140 immediate denture-mandibular $ 875.00
D5211 Maxillary partial-resin base $ 600.00
D5212 Mandibular partial-resin base $ 600.00
D5650 Add tooth to existing partial $ 68.00
D5410 Adjust complete denture, maxillary $ 65.00
D5411 Adjust complete denture, mandibular $ 65.00
D5421 Adjust partial denture, maxillary $ 55.00
D5422 Adjust partial denture, mandibular $ 55.00
D5750 Reline complete maxillary denture $244.00

Exhibit B-1 Contractor’s Initials: g1C
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Exhibit B-1

Senior Oral Health Program
Dental Fee Schedule

Code Procedure Eee
D5751 Reline complete mandibular denture $ 244.00
D5760 Reline maxillary partial denture $ 85.00
D5761 Reline mandibular partial denture $ 85.00
D7140 Extraction-erupted/exposed $ 150.00
D7210 Extraction-surgical-imp bony $225.00
Exhibit B-1 Contractor’s Initials: W €
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT C
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuals and,
in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and state iaws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

4. Documentation: [n addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

6. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a
payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to
influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract. The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is determined that payments, gratuities or offers of
employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or
Sub-Contractor.

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for any services provided
to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or {except
as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such
services.

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor’s costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party funders for such service. If at any time dunng the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment in excess
of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders, the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established,

8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of
costs;

NH DHHS Contractor Initials: (V¢
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8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the
Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time dunng the penod of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and
other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with
accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and
which are acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and
original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials,
inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or
required by the Department.

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Penod, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility (including all
forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
Contractor fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Govemments, and Non Profit Organizations" and
the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by
the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: Duning the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of
audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

11. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by
the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the Department regarding the
use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials requiring such information in
connection with their official duties and for purposes directly connected to the administration of the services and the
Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party of any information conceming a recipient for
any purpose not directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's resporsibilities
with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his attomey
or guardian.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in the Paragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

NH DHHS Contractor Initials; lM(
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12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following times
if requested by the Department.

12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Wntten interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all
costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the
Department.

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal and other information required by the
Department.

13. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and
all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Depariment shall disallow any expenses
claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the
amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

14. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared during or
resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Department
of Health and Human Services.

15. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership:
All matenials (wntten, video, audio) produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS
before printing, production, distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines, posters, or
reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without prior written approval
from DHHS.

16. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for
providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an
order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with
the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

17. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with greater
expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience, but the Contractor shall
retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate
the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement
that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation
or imposing sanctions if the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same
contractual conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance with
those conditions.

NH DHHS Contractor Initiais: M fL (
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When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

» Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating the function

» Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities and
how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's performance is not adequate

« Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis
Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

o DHHS shall review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall take corrective
action.

NH DHHS Contractor Initiats: AL
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department {0 be allowable and
reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance with state and federal
laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required by
the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuals by the Contractor
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue
for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period of
time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW. Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are referred
to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be
amended or revised from the time to time.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this Contract
will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

NH DHHS Contractor Initiats; | 1/{(
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT C-1

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of
Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or
in part, under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability
of funds, including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds
affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or
otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the
Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no
event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or
available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated
or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify
services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds
from any other source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the
General Provisions, Account Number, or any other account, i the event funds are
reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is
amended by adding the following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole
discretion of the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is
exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of
early termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of
clients receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those
needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any
information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement
and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the
Transition Plan to the State as requested.

NH DHHS Contractor’s Initials: W1 &
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10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to
clients receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having
services delivered by another entity including contracted providers or the State,
the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the
Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other
affected individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the
proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as
described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract is deleted
and the following subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or
property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and
$1,000,000 per occurrence and excess/umbrella liability coverage in the amount
of $2,000,000 per occurrence;

4, Subparagraph 14.1.3 and 14.1.4 of the General Provisions of this contract
are added:

14.1.3 professional liability against wrongful act, occurrence or personal injury
offense limit for coverages for professional liability, good samarntan liability,
malpractice liability, and personal injury liability, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 each claim and $3,000,000 general aggregate; and

14.1.4 the contractor shall be responsible that the dentist performing services
under this agreement maintains professional liability insurance.

5. Paragraph “10. Audit:” of Exhibit C Special Provisions is deleted and
replaced with the following:

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 9
months after the close of the agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the
report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit
Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General
Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to financial compliance

audits.
NH DHHS Contractor’s Initials:vuc
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’'s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
regulations were amended and published as Part |l of the May 25, 1990 Federal Reqister (pages 21681-
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlied substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

W))] The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: l/u C
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)
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Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted

) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation

of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and ().

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check [ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Tri-County Community Action Program From: effective date of contract To:6/30/15

(Contractor Name) Inc. (Period Covered by this Certification)

Michael Coughlin, Chief Executive Officer, Inc.

(Name & Title of Authorized Contractor Representative)

\}\M;u\g\ C@iﬂ L\k December 12, 2013

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Date)
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT E
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,

and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Titie VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: Effective date of contract through 6/30/15

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject
to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

”\A/LMJ (ﬂ/ g LA Michael Coughlin, Chief Executive Officer

(Contractdr Representative Signaturg) (Authonized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. December 12, 2013

(Contractor Name) (Date)
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is
providing the certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result
in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human
Services’ (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of
the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify
such person from participation in this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. if it is later determined that the
prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to
other remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary
participant leams that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions
and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.
See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should
the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by
DHHS.

Ui

Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters

January 2009
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The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person
who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may
terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

(1)

()

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and
its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezziement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen
property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (l)(b) of this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal
(contract).

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials; MI(C,
Standard Exhibit F - )
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal
department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it
will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all iower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

\J\/\l\,w& C &V”\\/k Michael Coughlin, Chief Executive Officer

(Contractor Representative Sigr)ature) (Authornized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. December 12, 2013
(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: (/(/(8/
Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters f /

January 2009 Date_( Z/ 1ef (7
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foliowing
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

\)\/\N\C’V\/Q [‘7 ﬂ k\k Michael Coughlin, Chief Executive Officer

(Contractor Representative %ignature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. December 12, 2013

(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: & é

Standard Exhibit G ~ Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act / /
January 2009 Date_( 2/12/ 17
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to chitdren under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

\
\}V\/k‘ ev\j (icﬁ”vﬂ L/L ) Michael Coughlin, Chief Executive Officer
(Contractor Representativk Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Tri—County Community Action Program, Inc. December 12, 2013
(Contractor Name) (Date)
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: V(/( C
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT 1
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

0}

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Definitions.

“Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach™ in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.

13400.

“Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

“Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

“Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164 .501.

“HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleX111, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Pnivacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor [nitials: Wl L

September 2009
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“Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

“Secretary ” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
1L For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (1) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (11) an agreement from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the
PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

g e __
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If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its intemal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s
intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor nitials: M C
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Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR
Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials:lé( C_
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Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the

Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which
can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of
this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

Depafﬂmeﬁ' 0{\ HeCHh q HUVY\GY\ gﬂ/; Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

The State Agency Name Name of the Contractor
§/A’V K/EOC’Z’/L/ \k/\«\/\ui Ca*/\ LL)

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Author{ized Representative
§}s€r L. Poc\e bu g Michael Coughlin

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

p(‘:l NG ﬂSQO C IC.‘&‘ e CommisSione(” Chief Executive Officer

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

IZJ/&B 15 December 12, 2013

Date Date

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials;_bv 1(
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

\,.th:w\g Con Lp\‘ Michael Coughlin, Chief Executive Officer
(Contractor Representative Lignature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. December 12, 2013

(Contractor Name) (Date)

Contractor initials: Wg:

pate: ' 2[i12/,7
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:  07-397-5708

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NQ, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19867
—____NO _____YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount: ___
Name: _ Amount: _
Name: Amount: _______
Name: ___ Amount: __
Name: Amount:

L

Contractor m/tlals
Date: /U '(
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State of Netow Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby

certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY
CAP)isa N.ew Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed May 18, 1965. I further certify
that it is in good standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and

paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREQF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 5" day of June A.D. 2013

Ty okt

William M, Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Todd Fahey, do hereby certify that:

1. 1am the Special Trustee appointed by the NH Probate Court to act on behalf of, and with all the
powers of, the Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., Board of Directors;

2. The following are resolutions of the corporation, duly enacted on December 12, 2013:

RESOLVED: That this Corporation may enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting by
and through the Department of Health and Human Services, providing for the performance by the
Corporation of certain oral health services;

RESOLVED: That the Tri-County Community Action Program Chief Executive Officer is hereby
authorized and directed for and on behalf of this corporation to enter into said contracts with the NH
DHHS, and to take any and all such actions and to execute, acknowledge and deliver for and on behalf
of this Corporation any and all documents, agreements and other instruments (and any amendments,
revisions or modifications thereto) as he may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate to accomplish
the same;

RESOLVED: That the signature of the Tri-County Community Action Program Chief Executive Officer
affixed to any instrument or document described in or contemplated by these resolutions shall be
conclusive evidence of the authority of said officer to bind this Corporation thereby.

3. Michael Coughlin is the Tri-County Community Action Program Chief Executive Officer.

4. The forgoing resolutions have not been revoked, annulled or amended in any manner
whatsoever, and remain in full force and effect as of December 12, 2013.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand as the SpecighTfustee of the corporation this 12

-

Z
Todd Fa he_y/(pe\EEll Trustee

th

day of December, 2013.

STATE OF NH, COUNTY OF MERRIMACK

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 12" day of December, 2013, by Special

(}um AQQ,QW

vry Public/Justice-of thePead
Commission Expires: JULIE A. DALEY, Notary Public
My Commission Explres December 18, 2013

Trustee Todd Fahey.




Client#: 53575 TRICO2

ACORD., CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 192018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:
Davis Towle Morrill & Everett PN, Ext): 603 225-6611 [mé Noj: 603-225-7935
115 Airport Road ADURESS:
P O Box 1260 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Concord, NH 03302-1260 INsURER A : Philadelphia Insurance Co.
INSURED . . . INSURERB : MEMIC Indemnity company
Tri County Community Action Program Inc INSURER G -
30 Exchange Street INSURER D:
Berlin, NH 03570 '
INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

'E‘P; TYPE OF INSURANCE ﬁ;%%" WV%R POLICY NUMBER (v:ﬂ/LD'gW) (rﬁﬁ/’ﬂ%%) LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK1051833 07/22/2013|07/22/2014) EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PAMARE RN e Rnce) | $100,000
‘ CLAIMS-MADE @ OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | $5,000
| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $1,000,000
| GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; PRODUCTS - cOMP/OP AGG | $3,000,000
j POLICY ’—‘ B m Loc s
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK1051833 07/22/2013|07/22/2014 FBheneens o= HMT 61,000,000
X| any auTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) |$
: ﬁbLTg‘Z‘VNED iS?ggULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) |
| X| HIRED AUTOS AJTOR N EP (Per socdent CE $
$
A | X|UMBRELLALIAB | X | gccur PHUB429043 07/22/2013|07/22/2014 EACH OCCURRENCE 52,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 52,000,000
DED | X‘ RETENTION $10000
B | o e o e Lo “n 3102801186 07/01/2013|07/01/2014 X Y30 [ [
ALERREIOREARTNERIRE™VE ] cL. Ao Accioent 500,000
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $500,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - PoLICY LMiT | $500,000
A |Professional PHPK1051833 7/22/2013|07/22/2014 $1,000,000 each
Liability professional incident
$3,000,000 aggregate
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
** Workers Comp Information **
Included states ~ NH
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
Stat of N, Dept o Health & SO At o T ASOVE ESCIIBED oL B CANCELL R BEfone
Human Services ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
129 Pleasant St
Concord, NH 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Ve I
[ 8.9

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Todd C. Fahey, Esq.

Court-Appointed Special Trustee

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire 03570

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2012, and the related statements of activities
and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Organization’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. ‘

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As more fully described in Note B, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. had not previously
classified the difference between its assets and liabilities as unrestricted net assets, temporarily
restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions. The effects on the financial statements of that departure from those accounting
principles are not reasonably determinable.

In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be
necessary had the opening balance of the net assets referred to in the preceding paragraph been
susceptible to satisfactory audit tests, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. as of June
30, 2012, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note B to the financial statements, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
implemented the requirements of FASB ASC 958 and recorded the current year changes in net assets
by class as unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net
assets based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the entity will continue as
a going concern. For the year ended June 30, 2012, the Organization used restricted net assets for
unrestricted purposes that contravene the donor’s restrictions amounted to $321,749. These factors,
and others discussed in Note Q, indicate that the entity may be unable to continue in existence. The
financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of
recorded assets or the amounts and classifications of liabilities that might be necessary in the event
the entity cannot continue in existence.



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2012

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Deposit Account - Guardianship
Accounts Receivable, Net
Inventories
Total Current Assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net Property and Equipment

OTHER ASSETS
Restricted Cash - Debt Service
Other Assets
Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Current Portion of Lease Payable
Line of Credit
Bank Overdraft
Accounts Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences
Accrued Salaries
Accrued Expenses
Other Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion
Lease Payable, Net of Current Portion
Interest Rate Swap at Fair Value

Total Long-Term Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily Restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$ 255,759
626,033

99,759
981,551

10,260,796

(3,410,650)

6,850,146

186,516
46,174
232,690

$ 8,064,387

$ 3337972
30,067

793,976

8,046

1,001,434
406,689
114,987

14,753

630,759
6,338,683

930,918
39,603

114,433
1,084,954
7,423,637

(321,749)

962,499

640,750

$ 8,064,387

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SUPPORT AND REVENUES
Grants and Contracts
Program Funding
Utility Programs
In-Kind Contributions
Contributions
Fundraising
Rental Income
Interest Income
Gain (Loss) on Disposal
Other Revenue

Total Support and Revenues

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTION

Expiration of Program Restrictions

OPERATING EXPENSES
Agency Fund
Headstart
Guardianship
Transportation
Volunteer
Workforce Development
AOD
Carroll County Dental
Carroll County Restorative Justice
Support Center
Homeless
Energy & Community Development
Elder
Total Operating Expenses

OTHER EXPENSES
Loss on Interest Rate Swap

TOTAL EXPENSES

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Net Assets, Beginning of Year as Previously Reported

Prior Period Adjustment, see Note P
Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Net Assets, End of Year

Unrestricted

Temporarily
Restricted Total

$ 15,732,761

$ 686,718 § 16,419,479

1,935,620 1,935,620
671,725 671,725
411,442 : 411,442
266,155 80,481 346,636

54,929 - 54,929
44,496 44,496
884 884

2,247 2,247
212,551 - 212,551
19,332,810 767,199 20,100,009

1,515,511 1,515,511

2,522,460 2,522,460
814,151 814,151

1,055,705 1,055,705
129,170 129,170
534,984 534,984

1,545,026 1,545,026
595,841 595,841
261,197 261,197

311,910 - 311,910
908,177 908,177
9,619,568 9,619,568
1,326,239 1,326,239
21,139,939 21,139,939
44,620 44,620
21,184,559 21,184,559
(1,851,749) 767,199 (1,084,550)

2,235,260 2,235,260
(705,260) 195,300 (509,960)

1,530,000 195,300 1,725,300

$ (321.749) § 962499 $ 640.750

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in Net Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net
Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:

Depreciation . 510,568
Gain on Disposal of Property (2,247)
Loss on Interest Rate Swap 44,620
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Restricted Deposit Account - Guardianship (255,759)
Accounts Receivable 401,365
Inventories (20,726)
Other Assets (13,558)
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Bank Overdraft (222,316)
Accounts Payable 323,594
Accrued Compensated Absences 11,789
Accrued Salaries 8,387
Accrued Expenses 53,608
Other Liabilities 630,759
Deferred Revenue (670,752) -
Total Adjustments 799,332

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Disposal of Property

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

$  (1,084,550)

(285,218)

2,247

Net Proceeds from Line of Credit 272,036
Repayment of Long-Term Debt (107,411)
Net Proceeds from Long-Term Debt 143,000
Repayment of Capital Lease Obligation (25,288)
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 282,337
NET DECREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (634)
Cash and Equivalents, Beginning of Year 187,150
Cash and Equivalents, End of Year 186,516
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash Paid During the Year For:
Interest $ 222,133

See Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements
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MISSION STATEMENT

Tri-County CAP is a group of people and projects
dedicated to improving the'lives and well-being
of New Hampshire's people and communities.

We provide opportunities and support
for people to learn and grow in self-sufficiency,
and to get involved in helging their neighbors
and improving the conditidnsjin their communities.

Tri-County Community Action Programs...
Helping people, chénging lives.

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PRi’GRAM, Inc. Is a private, non-profit
501(C) 3 corporation that is dedicated to improving the lives and well being of New
Hampshire’s pcople and communities. Formed on May 18, 1965, we provide
opportunities and support for people to learn and grow in self-sufficiency and get

involved in helping their neighbors and improving the conditions in their
communities.

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITYA?CTION PRPGRAM, Inc.
...Helping people, changing lives.

Weatherization Administration Tamworth Dental Energy Programs
(603) 752-7105 (603) 752-7001 Center (603) 752-7100
323-7645
AoD North Country North Country
(603) 869-2210 Transit Eider Programs R.S.V.P

(603)752-1741 (603)752-3010 (603) 752-4103



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION
PROGRAM Inc.

Serving Cooés, Carroll & Grafton Counties

30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570
(603) 752-7001 + Toll Free: 1-800-552-4617 « Fax: (603) 752-7607
Website: http://www.tccap.org ¢ E-mail: admin@tccap.org

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (TCCAP)

Board of Directors

The TCCAP Board of Directors was suspended in Cods County Probate Court Case #314-2012-
EX-00288 on December 14, 2012. Todd C. Fahey, Esq., was appointed special trustee of Tri-
County Community Action Program until such time as the issues resulting in his appointment
have been satisfactorily addressed. The special trustee holds all powers under the by-laws of Tri-
County Community Action and the laws of the State of New Hampshire to operate the
organization.

The Special Trustee has gathered names of individuals for potential appointment as members of
a newly-reconstituted Board of Directors, and anticipates a first meeting of the new Board in
December, 2013.



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title | Salary % Paid from this Amount Paid from this
Contract Contract

Michael Coughlin CEO $140,000 0% $ 0.00

Peter Higbee CoO $ 90,000 0% $0.00

Rea Pfeiffer CFO $ 83,000 0% $0.00

Chris Kempton, DDS | Dentist $114,750 Up to 9% Up to $10,732.10/yr.




Christopher W. Kempton, D.D.S.

Objective:

I am guided by a desire to be helpfui and to put my skills to work.
Education:

Broward Community College, Davie, Florida
1973-1975 :
University of Florida, Gainesville, Florida
1977-1979
Emory University School of Dentistry, Atlanta GA
National Health Service Scholar and Advocate at Emory University
1979-1984

Southside Medical Center, Atlanta, GA
1985-2007
Families First Health and Support Center, Portsmouth, NH
2007-2009
Aspen Dental, Concord and Rochester, NH
2009-2010
Tamworth Dental Center, Tamworth, NH
2010 to Present
Hillsborough County Department of Corrections, Manchester, NH
2013 to Present

Memberships:

North Country Dental Society
New Hampshire Dental Society
American Dental Association
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Board of Dental Examiners

CHRISTOPHER W KEMPTON, DDS

ActtveLic #: 03317
Issued: 10/17/2002
Expires:  04/30/2014
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Executive Secretary
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Senior Oral Health Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Department of Health and Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
311 Route 108
Goodwin Community Health Somersworth, NH 03878
1.5  Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7  Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number
603-749-2346 05-95-48-481010-89170000- | June 30, 2015 $44,618.00
102-500731
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Mary Maggioncalda, Administrator 603 271-9096
1.11 go_ntractor Signature 1.12  Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
/.\ M mm Janet Atkins, Executive Director
[ (A (

1 13( Acknowledgement State of AOM , County on&V‘c‘L&\‘QW'
\/ ok NV SO K

On \(5 , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the

person whnse name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public gr Justice of the Peace

- 13 S:Q}\)\ Clvmoan € NAR-\3

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

1.14 S3tate Agency Slgnature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Dvh/k“/ F]c‘l{nc‘ Hssocuﬁe Commissionel

Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By Z%&ﬂ&i o o413

1.18 A’pproval by tly’Governor and Executive Council

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES,

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifieen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22, SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: 77/'}‘
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program
Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Program Name: Senior Oral Health Program
1.1. Purpose:

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide dental treatment to adults age 60 years or older
in need of early, imminent or immediate care. The goal of the program is to: 1) identify adults
age 60 and over who are in obvious need of dental care and treatment, as described above,
and who lack resources to pay for care; 2) coordinate needed dental care and treatment
with a participating dentist/dental practice; and 3) alleviate pain, infection and suffering,
and/or restore individuals’ ability to eat comfortably.

Under the Senior Oral Health Program, a licensed community-based dental hygienist,
working under the supervision of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS),
Division of Public Health Services’ (DPHS) Oral Health Program Manager, shall conduct
dental screenings at designated senior center/congregate meal sites. The hygienist shall
screen and identify older adults with urgent need (pain and/or infection) or otherwise in need
of urgent or early care (within the next several weeks) and will provide this information to the
DHHS DPHS’ Oral Health Program Manager. Older adults identified as being in need of
early, imminent or immediate care shall be referred by the DHHS DPHS’ Oral Health
Program Manager to a participating dental practice to receive dental treatment. To ensure
that individuals follow-through with the referral, the Oral Health Program Manager shall
coordinate with the participating dental practice and the individual to facilitate appointments
as needed.

2. Provision of Services:
Under this agreement dentists treating individuals referred to their practices shall:

2.1 Accept referrals from the DHHS DPHS’ Oral Health Program Manager.

2.2 Complete an oral health assessment and develop a treatment plan based on identified
needs.

2.3 Schedule appointments and follow up for dental services based on the treatment plan.

2.4 Perform, with the individual's approval, dental services and treatment.

3. Licensing Requirements:
Dentist(s) performing services under this agreement, including any subcontract agreements,
must possess a current dental license issued by the State of New Hampshire Board of
Dental Examiners.

4. Equal Access to services:
To ensure equal access to quality services, the Contractor, when feasible and appropriate,
shall make reasonable efforts to provide clients of limited English proficiency (LEP) with
interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English as
their primary language and whose skills in listening to, speaking, or reading English are
such that they are unable to adequately understand and participate in the care or in the
services provided to them without language assistance.

Exhibit A Contractor’s Initials: Cfl/?;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program
Exhibit A

5. DHHS' Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services’ (BEAS) State Registry:
Contractors which are licensed, certified or funded by the DHHS shall meet the
requirements of RSA 161-F: 49 Registry, VII, which requires that all employers of programs
that are licensed, certified, or funded by the NH Department of Health and Human Services
to provide services, submit the name of prospective employees who may have client contact
for review against the registry of founded reports of abuse, neglect, and exploitation of
incapacitated aduits.

6. Contract Monitoring:
The State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services shall monitor the
contract by conducting announced and/or unannounced site reviews for compliance with the
terms in the agreement for up to four (4) years from the end period of the most recent
contract.

7. Entire Agreement:

The following documents are incorporated by reference into this Agreement and they
constitute the entire Agreement between the State and the Contractor: General Provisions
(P-37), Exhibit A Scope of Services, Exhibit B Purchase of Services, Exhibit B-1 Dental Fee
Schedule, Exhibit C Special Provisions, Exhibit C-1 Additional Special Provisions, Exhibit D
Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace, Exhibit E Certification Regarding Lobbying,
Exhibit F Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters,
Exhibit G Certification Regarding the American’s With Disabilities Act Compliance, Exhibit H
Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke, Exhibit | Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act Business Associate Agreement, and Exhibit J Certification
Regarding The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Compliance. In the
event of any conflict or contradiction between or among the Agreement documents, the
documents shall control in the above order of precedence.

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. Subject to the Contractor's compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the
Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services shall reimburse the Contractor for actual dental
service(s) provided by the contractor to eligible individuals, resuiting from referrals made by
the DPHS Oral Health Program Manager. Reimbursement shall be based on the Senior
Oral Health Program, Dental Fee Schedule, identified in Exhibit B-1.

2. Reimbursement Limits per Patient. Reimbursement is limited to $1,500 per patient per
state fiscal year, depending on the availability of funding. Any additional treatment that
exceeds the limit per patient shall be at the sole expense of the dentist.

3. Price Limitation. This Agreement is one of multiple Agreements that will serve the Senior
Oral Health Program. No maximum or minimum client and service volume is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the price limitation among all Agreements is identified in Block 1.8 of the P-37
for the duration of the Agreement.

4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that payment under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any
Federal or State Law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been satisfactory completed in accordance with the terms and condition of
this Agreement.

5. The funding source for this Agreement for Dental Services is 100% federal funds from the
Administration for Community Living, Title Ill, Part D, Disease Prevention and Health
Promotion Services, CFDA 93.043.

6. Contract dentists shall complete and submit Dental Claim Forms provided by the Bureau of
Elderly and Adult Services for each client, due within 15 days from the date of treatment.

Dental Claim forms shall be sent to:

Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services

Supervisor, Community Programs and Long-Term Care
Governor Hugh Gallen Office Park, Brown Building

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, N.-H. 03301

7. The contractor shall have or secure a vendor number with the State of New Hampshire to
receive payment from the DHHS.

8. The Contractor shall comply with the necessary steps established by the Department for
making payments to vendors using Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT). Exceptions to using
EFT for payment shall be made upon prior approval of the BEAS Financial Manager or
designee.

Exhibit B Contractor’s Initials: ;Z {1 ’
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Exhibit B-1

Code

DG140
D0150
D0210
D0220
D0230
D0330
D2140
D2150
D2160
D2161
D2330
D2331
D2332
D2335
D2391
D2392
D2393
D2394
D4341
D4355
D5110
D5120
D5130
D5140
D5211
D5212
D5650
D5410
D5411
D5421
D5422
D5750

Exhibit B-1
Page 1 of 2

Senior Oral Health Program
Dental Fee Schedule

Procedure

Limited oral evaluation
Comprehensive oral evaluation
Intraoral-complete series
Intraoral-Periapical 1st film
Intraoral-Periapical ea. add'l
Panoramic film

Amalgam - 1 surface
Amalgam - 2 surface
Amalgam - 3 surface
Amalgam - 4/4+ surface
Resin-1 surface anterior
Resin-2 surface anterior
Resin-3 surface anterior
Resin-4/4+ surface anterior
Resin-1 surface posterior
Resin-2 surface posterior
Resin-3 surface posterior
Resin-4/4+ surface posterior

Periodontal scaling/root planing (per quadrant)

Full mouth debridement

Complete denture-maxillary
Complete denture-mandibular
immediate denture-maxillary
Immediate denture-mandibular
Maxillary partial-resin base
Mandibular partial-resin base

Add tooth to existing partial

Adjust complete denture, maxillary
Adjust complete denture, mandibular
Adjust partial denture, maxillary
Adjust partial denture, mandibular
Reline complete maxillary denture

Fee
60.00
62.00
96.00
15.00
10.00
$ 83.00
$ 150.00
$ 155.00
$ 180.00
$ 200.00
$ 131.00
$ 143.00
$ 147.00
$ 165.00
$ 150.00
$ 155.00
$ 180.00
$ 200.00
$100.00
$90.00
$ 800.00
$ 800.00
$ 875.00
$ 875.00
$ 600.00
$ 600.00
$ 68.00
$ 65.00
$ 65.00
$ 55.00
$
$

o PN BH PH

55.00
244.00

Contractor’s Initials: ’TI/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Exhibit B-1

Senior Oral Health Program
Dental Fee Schedule

Code Procedure Fee

D5751 Reline complete mandibular denture $244.00
D5760 Reline maxillary partial denture $ 85.00
D5761 Reline mandibular partial denture $ 85.00
D7140 Extraction-erupted/exposed $ 150.00
D7210 Extraction-surgical-imp bony $225.00

Exhibit B-1 Contractor’s Initials: S] U
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT C
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuals and,
in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shail be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

4. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a
payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to
influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract. The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is determined that payments, grafuities or offers of
employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or
Sub-Contractor.

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for any services provided
to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except
as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such
services.

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor's costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment in excess
of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders, the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;

8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of
costs;

NH DHHS Contractor Initials:gl % ]
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8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the
Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and
other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with
accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and
which are acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and
original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials,
inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or
required by the Department.

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility (including all
forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
Contractor fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations" and
the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by
the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of
audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

11. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by
the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the Department regarding the
use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials requiring such information in
connection with their official duties and for purposes directly connected to the administration of the services and the
Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for
any purpose not directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities
with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his attorney
or guardian.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in the Paragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.
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12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following times
if requested by the Department.

12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all
costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the
Department.

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal and other information required by the
Department.

13. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and
all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses
claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the
amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

14. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared during or
resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Department
of Health and Human Services.

15. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership:
All materials (written, video, audio) produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS
before printing, production, distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines, posters, or
reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without prior written approval
from DHHS.

16. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for
providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an
order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with
the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

17. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with greater
expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience, but the Contractor shall
retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate
the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement
that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation
or imposing sanctions if the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same
contractual conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance with
those conditions.

NH DHHS Contractor Initials: UM’
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When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating the function
Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities and
how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's performance is not adequate

Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis

Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’'s performance will be reviewed

DHHS shall review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall take corrective

action.

NH DHHS
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable and
reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance with state and federal
laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required by
the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuals by the Contractor
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue
for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period of
time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are referred
to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be
amended or revised from the time to time.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this Contract
will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

+
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT C-1

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of
Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or
in part, under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability
of funds, including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds
affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or
otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the
Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no
event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or
available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated
or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify
services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds
from any other source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the
General Provisions, Account Number, or any other account, in the event funds are
reduced or unavailable.

2, Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is
amended by adding the following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole
discretion of the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is
exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of
early termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of
clients receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those
needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any
information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement
and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the
Transition Plan to the State as requested.

NH DHHS Contractor’s Initials: / %4
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10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients
receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by
another entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a
process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
individuals about the transition. = The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract is deleted and the
following subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or
property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per
occurrence and excess/umbrella liability coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 per
occurrence;

4. Subparagraph 14.1.3 and 14.1.4 of the General Provisions of this contract are
added:

14.1.3 professional liability against wrongful act, occurrence or personal injury
offense limit for coverages for professional liability, good samaritan liability,
malpractice liability, and personal injury liability, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 each claim and $3,000,000 general aggregate; and

14.1.4 the contractor shall be responsible that the dentist performing services
under this agreement maintains professional liability insurance.

NH DHHS Contractor’s Initials: M
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’'s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and
4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: J l }/
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(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under

subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

il Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted
(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency,

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check [] if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

@mm Qmm/u; Ly 7[7[ et

(Contractor Name) (Period Covered by this Certification)

TJonet /CH\AMS EX(’/LZ@‘%//LQ ctov

(Name & /{ itle of Authorized Contractor Representative)

ma&VU/ UK o -9 /3

(Corljaétor Representative Signature) (Date)
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT E
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: through

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

{2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject
toa civiI penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

”\//LW /bﬁ(vw TJanek A, &PM%ZU(B/I?O(!W

(Cj\/téctor Representative Signature) (Authonzed Contractor Represehtative Name & Title)
f éo </< YLI/ a./#) / [ —( g D)
Yodluin NNLerly 0 vl
(Contractor Name) (Date)
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,

Suspension,

and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's

representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is
providing the certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result
in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human
Services' (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of
the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify
such person from participation in this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to
other remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary
participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

" ouy

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions
and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.
See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should
the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by
DHHS.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: J }’
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7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person
who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may
terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and
its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen
property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (I)(b) of this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal

(contract).
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: \/
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal
department or agency.

(b} where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that it
will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

/T) CA e u/’ //J‘KM Janet ﬂ%k/ﬁS z'w/:J/ﬂL‘/Lﬁ W D/féb‘b/

(Contract Representatlve Slgnature) (Authorized Contractor Representatl've Name & Title)
G()éd’wm CDn’W\Lw/ /’/ﬂaﬂh /1-18 7 3

(Contractor Name) (Date)
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

ﬂﬂ&/u//’/m4 L4 e d (ns, Lyee vl ! )re o

(Conjractor Representatlve Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representatwe Name & Title)
hpdwn fﬁmmun/% /*/mu% ///f// >

Contractor Name) (Date) /
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

j@&mg/ CUK A JA’A(%' ai/(mj [y(/‘m%ebmﬁ/

(CWtor R'e};resentative Sigr'laturé) (Authoﬁzed Contractor Representative Mame & Title)
(00 dwin (}{W/%MIJLL/’(/JH% /zz} 8/12

(Contractor Name) 4 (Date) / {
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT I
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

)

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Definitions.

“Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.

13400.

“Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of

Federal Regulations.

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of

Federal Regulations.

“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

“Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

“Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

“HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,

TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

September 2009

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: , Z Zj :)’
Page 1 of 6 Date: t //l‘& /t




@)

Page of

“Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

“Secretary ” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured

by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established

under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
1L As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
1. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the
PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: J 2 ]’
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If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s
intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR
Section 164.526.
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Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR
Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials:
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Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the
Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit 1 or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which
can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of
this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit 1 regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, retum or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor |nitia|s:§2 Zj
September 2009

Page 5 of 6 Date: A ]/[Zi/ (5
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IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit L.

D@ﬁrﬂen‘\ o‘f‘ Ha:Hv\ § Hu\mar\ §€rv'lcc\g

/}/ V/u N Q)mmgﬁ {‘la H Q(LH(’)

The State Agency Name

S L Rt

Name of the Contractor

"
o ‘/1} [%Wé(/—\

Signature of Authorized Representative

Sher L. tf?ocliburn

Sifhaft’ure of Authorized Representative

aret (ks

Name of Authorized Representative

Hc“mo‘ nssoc:)a‘ic Comm)ssioner

Name of Authorized Representative

Ly 0(1(4:)( '\/{\D (L{JC{LV

Title of Authorized Representative

Z//£>//3

Title of Authorized Representative

(/Lg//z

Date

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 6 of 6
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

/)Z/L&ul// OATA Udng + @/{m; EYoc i tuse D(/Lzéﬂ%r‘

(Cétractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Eoocduin GDmmum‘Aj Hya (I/lb’//ﬁ
(Contractor Name) (Date)
-
Contractor injtials:
Date: /l ¥= ! _

Page # of Page #



NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 8 3 bf 1 5516

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?
— _NO _____YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: __ Amount:
Name: _ Amount: __
Name: _ Amount: __
Name: Amount:

Contract%in/}ii}s:é 4&

Date:
Page # of Page #




State of Nefo Hampshive
Bepariment of Btate

CERTIFICATE ' '

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Goodwin Community Health is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed August 18, 1971. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 8" day of April A.D. 2013

oy Bkl

William M, Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, David Staples, DDS, of the Goodwin Community Health, do hereby certify that:
1. Iam the duly elected Board Chair of the Goodwin Community Health;

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors

of Goodwin Community Health, duly held on April 24, 2013;

Resolved: That this corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting
through its Department of Health and Human Services for the provision of Public Health
Services.

Resolved: That the Executive Director, Janet Atkins, is hereby authorized on behalf of this
Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as

he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and effect as of

November 18 2013

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Board Chair of the Goodwin Community

Health this [ § day of MY, 2013. J
' 4%%& T g%/ W

David Staplés, DDS, Board Chair

STATE OF NH
COUNTY OF STRAFFORD
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this /)9 day of Z%ﬂ’ﬂmb«;QOB by David

Staples, DDS.
@\/@
Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My Commission Expires: W
l-19-0013 @)
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ACORD"  CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE “tuznizots

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: |If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER License # AGR8150 SONIACT | orraine Michals
Shark Insurance P ONE  £xt.(603) 622-2855 FX o). (603) 622-2854
Manchester, NH 03101 ROBHESS: Imichals@clarkinsurance.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
insurer A : Union Mutual of Vermont 25860
INSURED insurer 6 : Columbia Casualty 31227
Goodwin Community Health INSURER C :
311 Route 108 INSURER D :
Somersworth, NH 03878 INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN (S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

|IL\I_I§§ [ADDL| POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR| WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
| GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,0
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY BOP0101921 713112013 | 713112014 | DREURE o songronce) | S 50,00
| cLAmMs-MADE E OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | § 5,000
L PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
L GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
7‘ POLICY RO LOC $
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY &g“ggg‘éiﬁt)g'“@-'f LM 1,000,000
A ANY AUTO BOP0101921 7/31/2013 | 7/31/2014 | BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
B Qb'-Tg’gWED iﬁ?ggULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
| X | HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per acadent)
$
| X | umBreLLALIAB | X | ocCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,001
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE UMO0120367 7131/2013 | 7/31/2014 | AGGREGATE s 1,000,00
DED | | RETENTIONS $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TORY LIMITS ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE] $
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
B [FTCAGap Prof Liab HMA4032096142-0 7/31/12013 | 7/31/2014 |Per Claim 1,000,000
B |[Claims Made HMA4032096142-0 7/31/2013 | 7/31/2014 |Aggregate 3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
FTCA Gap Prof Liability Policy Retro Date: 4/1/2005

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

NH DHHS
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Bureau of Drug & Alcohol Services

29 Hazen Drive
Concord, NH 03301-6504 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

| N

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2010/05) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
11/19/2013

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. 1f SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ﬁguEACT

AUTOMATIC DATA PROCESSING ngNE Ext) m)é Nol.

INSURANCE AGENCY, INC. e ao-Ext: G, Nok:

1 ADP Boulevard ADDRESS: ]

Roseland, NJ 07068 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

. INSURER A :

INSURED ) INsURERB : EastGUARD Insurance Company 14702

Goodwin Community Health Center -
INSURERC :

311 Route 108 INSURER D :

Somersworth, NH 03878 INSURERE : 0
INSURERF : |

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANGE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD |
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE WVD POLICY NUMBER MMWDD/YYYY) | (MMDD/YYYY) LIMITS T
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $
AMAGE TO RENTED
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any cne person) $
PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | §
GENERAL AGGREGATE $ |
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER' PRODUCTS - COMP/IOP AGG | §
RO-
POLICY RO Loc $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea aceident) s
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED ! SCHEDULED ;
AUTOS | AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
! $
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DEDJ ‘ RETENTION § $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN ToRY MTs | X | ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
B | OFFICER'MEMBER EXCLUDED? @] NIA GOWC435525 07/31/2013 | 07/31/2014
(Mandatory in NH) E.L DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under r
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $

_

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is requirad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

DHHS
29 Hazen Dr
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WiILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2010/05)

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Accountable

Indepenident Auditors' Report

Board of Directors

Goodwin Commumty Health 1
and Subsidiary }
Somersworth, New Hampshire '1

We have dudited thie' accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Goodwin Community
Health and Subsidiary (the Center), as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated staterients of
activities, cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Center's management Qur responsibility is to exptess an ‘Opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on dur audtts *

We conducted our audits in accordance -with auditing stan&ards generally accepfed in the United States of
America. Those standards require. that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assuranice about
whether the consolidatéd finaricial statements are free of miaterial misstaterierits. An sudit includes
exammmg, on @ test basts eviderice suppoiting the amquhts arid disclosures in the_consdlidated financlal
state -audit also includes assessing the accountiny j principles used and significant-estimates made
by managerdent as Weéll as evallating the overall consohdated financlal statement presentatior. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable:basls for our opinlon. §

In our opinion, the ocongglidated financial statements referred to above .present fairly, in all material respects,
te conisolidated finaricial position of Gopdwin Commurity Health and Subsidiary as of June 30, 2012 and
2011, and the consolidated thanges in its Net agsets and its cash flows for the years ‘then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Siates of America,

Dur audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an épinlon on the consolidated fi nanCIaI statements
The conso“lrdahng schedules on pages 18 fhrough 20 are p![esented for | purposes of additional -analysis and
are not a requured part_ of the consohdateg finangial state gﬁents Such informatioh is the resporisibility of
management and was defived from and relates diretly to the uriderlying accoyntmy and other recotds Used to
prepare the consolidated financiaf statements The fnformatnon has beeh subje od 16 fhie auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the consehdated financial statements and certain & diticral procedures. ncludihg
comparing :and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other Tecords uséd to
prepare the consolidated fi nancial statements or {o thie coRsolidated financlal statements
other additional procedures in accordance with audifing staqdar&s generally accepies Ui |
América. In ehr opmlon the lnformatxon is faxrty stated in aII materlal respects in relalion 10 the cohsolndated
financial statefmefits as a whole.

>, Ll

Augusta Maine
December 11, 2012

On¢ Market Square Augusla ME 02‘330 4837 i 207 622- 4766 J 207 022 6545 fdx

macpage.com

adrey Alliance
of Hciependant ancovnfing ond consuiting firms. MeGladrey Aliignce member firms maintain their respective
are Fesparisiole for “thatc vns chient M ansngaments, delivery ofygivices and U‘aﬂv’ena'\ce of client reta. t’cmsh [} 9
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Gugdwin Gommuriity Heaith and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

sJuneé 30,

ASSETS

£unent Assets
pash equivalents {Notes 1 and 2)
Accotints: Féceivable, net (Notes 1 and 3)
‘Granis receivable (Note 4)
Curignt gorfion bf pledges receivabie {Note 5)
Cost'sétilernent receivable {Note 6)
Prepaid expenses

Totdl Cufrént Assets

Property and Equipment; Net (Notes 1.and 7)

Other Assets
Goodwill (Note 1)

Pledges receivable, niet of current porlion (Note 5)

Security deposits
Total Gther Assets

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabjlities
Acgounts payable
Acciued expenses
Lines of credit (Note 8)
Curreht p‘ortlon of long-term debt (Note 9)
Totdl Cuirent Lidbilities

Long-esm Liabilities _
Long:t&fii débt, net of current portion (Note 9)
Total L.ong-term Liabilitles

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Uniestricted (Deficit)
Temporarily restricted (Note 11)
TotalNef Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these c@nsolidated financial statermerits.

2012 2011

$ 299,585 § 293,610
343,099 4 257,830
85,240 300,072
13,999 16,469
38,930 259,493
2,000 17,720

_ 788,853 2,145,008
6,785,398 7,264,105
17,582 17,582
12,281 14,281

| 5,500
29,863 37,863

§ _7;604,114

$ 385,167
307,764
330,280

103,840 _

$ 9446471 X

$ 1,001,796
334,028
367 380

EFAT)

1,062;605 9158691
2,189,656 _.8,074.862
(360,414) 365,371
5,174,872 6,006,238
~ 5,413,358 5,371,609
$ 7,604 14

$ 90446471




Goodwin Commiunity Heatth and Subsidiary

-Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2012

Operating Revenue and Support
Netpatient service revenue (Nofes 1:and 10)
- Graits, contracts ‘and contributions {Notes 1-and 12)
'WIC fobd viuehiers (Note 16)
Cither

Net assets réleased from réstrictioris

Functional Expenses

Progfam sefyices -

Fundraising

Gerergl and admilpistrativé

Total Expenses

Change in Nét Assets from Operating Activities
Non-Dperating Revenue and Support

Gain on sale of property and equipment

Rent incoié
Change I Nét Assets from Non-Operating Activities
Total Change:|fi Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets (Deficit), End of Year

lt ~ Temporarily
Unrestricted  Restricted. Total
, e
$ 3,613,824 $ 3j813,824
2,111,052  $ 15,000 2,326,052
1,458,911 1,458,911
29,042 29,042
7;212,829 15,000 7,227,829
245,366 246,366)
7459195 _ 231366) __ 7,227,829
6,841,087 6,841,087
- 179,844 178,634
| 1,266,168 1,266,168
8,286,899 8,286,899
. (827,704) (231,368) _ (1,059,070}
-~ 86,244 86,244
i 15,675 15,875
L 101,918 __101.919
| (725785)  (231,865)  {957,151)

365,371

6,006,238 6,371,608

]
{
$  (360,414)

$5774872 § 5414458

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these cons:olidated financial statements.
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Goodwin Community Health-afid Siibsidiary

Consolidated Statement of Activities - ¢bptinu,ed

Year ended June 30, 2011

Operating Revenue and Support
Net paﬂent serv“ foe Tevenue (Notes 1and 1 0)
W_Gfobd'\;t_)uchers (Note 16)
OGther

Net assets:released from Testrictions
Tot4l Operating Revenue and Support

Functional Expenses

Program-services
Fundraising
General-and administrative

Total EXpenses

Change in Net Assets from Operating Activities

‘Non-Operating Revenue and Support

Grants for-construction costs (Notes 1, 12.and 17)
Grants for equipment purchases (Noteés 1 and 12)
Retitincomie

Change in Net Assets from Non-Operating Activities

Total Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

!

Temporarily
Unrestricted_ Restricted _Total
$ 4,031,729 4.031,729
2466464 § 29,824 2,516,268
1,445,383 1,146,383
66322 _ 882
7,710,898 49§24 7,760,722
161,560 (161860)
_ 7812458 (111436) 7,160,722
6,951,345 6,951,345
179,093 179,093
1,258,568 1,258,568
8,389,006 _ 8,389,006
(516.548) (111;736) (628,284)
4,973,786 4,973,786
438,838 438,838
10,688 10,688
10688 . 5412624 5423312
(505,860) 5,300,888 4,795,028
_ 871231 705,350 1,576,581
$ 365371 §6,006238 6,371,609

The accampanying notes aré an integral part of these cons}_olidated financial statements.
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(Goodwin

Community Health

Name/Address ; Occupation
Chair ] .
David B. Staples, DDS : Dentist
Consumer
Yice Chair ‘ ]
Valerie Goodwin Business
Board Treasurer
Mark Boulanger CPA
Board Secretary:
. Kelley LaRue Design Consultant
Consumer
i
Board Members
Jane Wright | Certified Hemodialysis Technician |
. Consumer
Pamela Bertram, MD . .
Physician
Robert F. Kraunz, MD ’ Retired Physician ]
Timothy Beaupre, Esq. Attorney
Laurie A. Biracree Yoga Instructor
Consumer
{-A]Jison Neal Education Consultant
Consumer
Robert G. Fullerton Retired Airline Pilot
Marissa Ruffini Music Therapist
Consumer
Hilton Kelly Financial Advisor
) Consumer

311 Route 108 - Somersworth, NH 03878
(603) 749-2346 - Fax (603) 953-0066
www.GoodwinCH.org

Funding for these services is provided in part through New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services.
This health center is a Health Center Program grantee under 42 U.S.C. 254b, and a deemed Public Health Service
employee under 42 U.S.C. 233(g)-(n).



BOARD OF DIRECTORS FISCAL YEAR 2014

Goodwin Community Health

Name/Address Occupation
Chair .
David B. Staples, DDS Dentist

Consumer

Vice Chair
Valerie Goodwin Business
Board Treasurer
Mark Boulanger CPA

Board Secretary:

Kelley LaRue Design Consultant
Consumer

Board Members

Jane Wright Certified Hemodialysis Technician
Consumer

Pamela Bertram, MD . .
Physician

Robert F. Kraunz, MD

Retired Physician

Timothy Beaupre, Esq.

Attorney
Laurie A. Biracree Yoga Instructor
Consumer
Allison Neal Education Consultant
Consumer

Robert G. Fullerton

Retired Airline Pilot

Marissa Ruffini Music Therapist
Consumer

Hilton Kelly Financial Advisor
Consumer

Rev. 11/2010



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Whitney Goode, Dental Director 146,764.80 0 0

DMD

Lisa Slaughter, DMD | Dentist 75,953.28 0 0

Gregory Fredette, .| Dentist 125,008.00 0 0

DMD




Whitney E. Goode, DMD
Goodwin Community Health
311 Route 108
Somersworth, NH 03878
wgoode@GoodwinCH.com

Educational Experience
e  Tufts University School of Dental Medicine, Boston, Massachusetts

DMD May 2007
e Kalamazoo College, Kalamzoo, Michigan
Bachelor of Liberal Arts 2003 ~ Major: Chemistry
e L’Ecole Superieure de Commerce, Clermont-Ferrand, France
7 month study abroad program, completed an Inter Cultural Research'Project entitled “The ways in
which the Secours Catholique helps underprivileged families in French society”

Work Experience ’

»  Goodwin Community Health (Aug 2007- present)

Serve as Dental Director (Aug 2009-present) and dentist in the Somersworth clinic
e Community Health Center of South Dade (May-June 2006)

Participated in a community service externship under the direction of Dr. Sheri Watson
e Kalamazoo College (2002-2003)

Performed research under the direction of Dr. Regina Stevens-Truss
e Karmanos Cancer Institute (June — August 2001)

Acted as a research assistant for Dr. Diane Brown, volunteered at the Walt Breast Clinic
e Kalamazoo College Peer Leader (2000-2001)

Served as a peer leader to the incoming class of 2004
e  Port Huron Municipal Marinas (June- September 1999, 2000)

Position: Dock Attendant
e Dr. Goode’s Dental Office (Sporadically from 1996-2002)

Discovered the various aspects of a dentist and a dental office’s work

Research/Scientific Achievements
e Kalamazoo College
Research project entitled “ Spectrophotometric analysis of nitric oxide synthase: Effects of solvent
composition on the heme pocket” published in 2003
e Karmanos Cancer Institute in cooperation with Wayne State University
Research project entitled “The effects of spiritual based therapy on the emotional well-being of African
American Breast Cancer Patients” published in 2004
e Assisted in research for a medical publication and debate on orthopedic surgery- “The Successful
Treatment of Cubital Tunnel Syndrome Does Not Require Transposition of the Ulnar Nerve:
Proponents Statement” published in the Journal of Hand Surgery Nov. 1999
e MASTER (math and science technology enriched research) ( 1995-1999)
-St. Clair County Science and Engineering Fair (1996-1999)
~ 1996 “The effects of fluoride on tooth decay” 2™ place
~1997 “The effects of wearing orthodics and the stress on your body” 1¥ place
~1999 “The effects of ethlenediaminetetracetic acid on vitamin B3 deficiency in irradiated
poultry” 1% place
~1998 “The effects of ethlenediaminetetracetic acid on poultry bacteria’s susceptibility to
irradiation” Grand Prize
-International Science and Engineering Fair, Ft. Worth, Texas (May 1998)
~2™ place with same 1998 project

Other Achievements

Contributor to New Hampshire Oral Health Workforce Strategic Plan (2010)
Dental Class Secretary (2003-2004) and (2005-2007)

Delta Sigma Delta Dental Fraternity Secretary (2005-2006)

Kalamazoo College Honors Award (four-year merit scholarship)
Chairperson, National Honor Society 1998 & 1999

Rotary Exchange Student Williamshaven, Germany (July 1997)

Activities
. Member, ADA (2003- present)



Whitney E. Goode, DMD
Goodwin Community Health
311 Route 108
Somersworth, NH 03878
wgoode@GoodwinCH.com

Member, New Hampshire Dental Society (2007-present)

Member, New Hampshire Dental Society Council on Membership (2008-present)
Member, New Hampshire Dental Soceity New Dentist Committee (2009-present)
Member, Smile Squad, Tufts University (2003-2007)

Member, Delta Sigma Delta, Tufts University (2003-present)

Member, SAC (Student Activities Committee) Kalamazoo College (1999-2003)
Member & Secretary, American Chemical Society, Kalamazoo College (1999-2006)
Volunteer, K Crew (Admissions Office Volunteer) Kalamazoo College (1999-2003)
Soccer, travel, high school and intramural college (1991- 1999, 2002-2003)
Volunteer, Red Cross, Kalamazoo, MI and Port Huron, MI (1997- 2001)

Mentor, Bridge Builders Counseling Center, Port Huron, MI (1997-1999)



Lisa Slaughter, D.M.D.
311 Route 108
Somersworth, NH 03878
(603) 749-2346
Islaughter@goodwinch.org

Objective: Public Health General Dentist

Education:

D.M.D., Tufts University School of Dental Medicine, 2007
B.S., Biology, St. Michael’s College, 2002

Mt. Blue High School, 1994-1998

Honors:
Dean’s Honor Roll for performance on National Boards Part II, 2006
Tuft’s University School of Dental Medicine

Graduated Magna Cum Laude, 2002
St. Michael’s College

Skills:

Patient communication and education

Digital radiology

AXIUM and Centricity digital record systems

Work Experience:

General Dentist, January 2009-Present
Goodwin Community Health
Somersworth, NH

Locum Tenens General Dentist, September-October 2010
Tamworth Dental Center
Tamworth, NH

Associate General Dentist, September 2007-September 2008
Paul W. Conrad, D.D.S., P.C. and Associates
Montclair, VA

Dental Extern, November-December 2006
V.A. Hospital dental clinic
Togus, ME

Teaching Assistant, fall 2006
Tufts University School of Dental Medicine
Geriatric Dentistry

References: Available upon request



GREGORY FREDETTE, DMD

311 Route 108 gfredette@GoodwinCH.com
Somersworth, NH 03878 603-749-2346
EDUCATION:

Tufts University School of Dental Medicine, Boston, MA
Doctor of Dental Medicine
Graduation May 2012

Worcester Polytechnic Institute, Worcester, MA
Bachelor of Science in Biomedical Engineering
Graduation May 2008

EXPERIENCE:
Staff Dentist, Goodwin Community Health, Somersworth, NH
Full-time general dentist in a Federally Qualified Health Clinic that accepted all insurances, including NH Medicaid, and
offered sliding fee schedule for low income patients. Performed preventative, restorative, and emergency care on a full
range of dental patients.
September 2013-Present

Associate Dentist, Gentle Dental, Quincy, MA
Performed a full range of dental services, including exams and treatment plans, restorative, endodontics, crown and

bridge, removable prosthodontics, and extractions.
June 2012-August 2013

Dental Extern, Penobscot Community Health Clinic, Bangor, ME

Completed a five-week dental externship in a busy dental clinic. Performed a variety of procedures, including
endodontics, extractions, pediatric, and restorative dentistry

October-November 2011

HONORS:
Thomas B. Hunt Endowed Scholarship, 2011
Dr. Alfred Osher and Mrs. Suzi Osher Endowed Scholarship, 2011
National Board Dental Examination Part II, Tufts University Dean's Honor Roll, 2011
National Board Dental Examination Part I, Tufts University Dean's Honor Roll, 2010

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS:
American Dental Society, 2008-Present
Massachusetts Dental Society, 2008-Present
New Hampshire Dental Society, 2013-Present

PROFESSIONAL MEETINGS:
Yankee Dental Congress, Boston, MA, 2008-Present

CONTINUING EDUCATION:
"Suture Techniques", Hur, Yong, 2013
Yankee Dental Congress, Boston, MA

"To Post of Not To Post?", Gulati, Harish, 2013

Yankee Dental Congress, Boston, MA

"21st Century Evidenced Based Endodontics", Bruder, George, 2012
Waltham, MA

;;Troubleshooting Posterior Composites in 2012:, McManama, John, 2012
Waltham, MA



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Senior Oral Health Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2  State Agency Address

Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.3  Contractor Name

Families First of the Greater Seacoast

1.4 Contractor Address
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number

Number
603-422-8208 05-95-48-481010-89170000-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2015 $44,618.00

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Mary Maggioncalda, Administrator

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-9096

1.11 Contractor Signature

VO, D:“"\'Lt

112
Helen 6 Takt, Executive Director | fresidlent

Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13  Acknowledgement: State of Ny , County of "R ock. nghan\

On

1.12.

3
Q_lﬂ_(:‘before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seal} ‘—yl aﬂ\c?,‘ ”

k/I’Lmtv:ua

My Comemission Expires March 7, 2017

1.:3.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

f\fotn(‘:j CasKo) No+arj

1.14 te Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
K gO’\) Shert L. Roc\(burn ..

M 0 ting Asscaicte Commissioner
1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
By: Director, On:
1.17 Apprgval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)
By: o 2243
1.18 Approval by the G6vernor and Executive Council
By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liguidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

Page 2 of 4

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: i Wy
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.-H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Page 3 of 4

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: (Agl_a
Date: 99 3




certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22, SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: \ \‘./hf\
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program
Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Program Name: Senior Oral Health Program
1.1. Purpose:

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide dental treatment to adults age 60 years or older
in need of early, imminent or immediate care. The goal of the program is to: 1) identify adults
age 60 and over who are in obvious need of dental care and treatment, as described above,
and who lack resources to pay for care; 2) coordinate needed dental care and treatment
with a participating dentist/dental practice; and 3) alleviate pain, infection and suffering,
and/or restore individuals’ ability to eat comfortably.

Under the Senior Oral Health Program, a licensed community-based dental hygienist,
working under the supervision of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS),
Division of Public Health Services’ (DPHS) Oral Health Program Manager, shall conduct
dental screenings at designated senior center/congregate meal sites. The hygienist shall
screen and identify older adults with urgent need (pain and/or infection) or otherwise in need
of urgent or early care (within the next several weeks) and will provide this information to the
DHHS DPHS’ Oral Health Program Manager. Older adults identified as being in need of
early, imminent or immediate care shall be referred by the DHHS DPHS’ Oral Health
Program Manager to a participating dental practice to receive dental treatment. To ensure
that individuals follow-through with the referral, the Oral Health Program Manager shall
coordinate with the participating dental practice and the individual to facilitate appointments
as needed.

2. Provision of Services:
Under this agreement dentists treating individuals referred to their practices shall:

2.1 Accept referrals from the DHHS DPHS’ Oral Health Program Manager.

2.2 Complete an oral health assessment and develop a treatment plan based on identified
needs.

2.3 Schedule appointments and follow up for dental services based on the treatment plan.

2.4 Perform, with the individual's approval, dental services and treatment.

3. Licensing Requirements:
Dentist(s) performing services under this agreement, including any subcontract agreements,
must possess a current dental license issued by the State of New Hampshire Board of
Dental Examiners.

4. Equal Access to services:
To ensure equal access to quality services, the Contractor, when feasible and appropriate,
shall make reasonable efforts to provide clients of limited English proficiency (LEP) with
interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English as
their primary language and whose skills in listening to, speaking, or reading English are
such that they are unable to adequately understand and participate in the care or in the
services provided to them without language assistance.

Exhibit A Contractor’s Initials: _ \!
Page 1 of 2 Date: >



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program
Exhibit A

5. DHHS’ Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services’ (BEAS) State Registry:
Contractors which are licensed, certified or funded by the DHHS shall meet the
requirements of RSA 161-F: 49 Registry, VII, which requires that all employers of programs
that are licensed, certified, or funded by the NH Department of Health and Human Services
to provide services, submit the name of prospective employees who may have client contact
for review against the registry of founded reports of abuse, neglect, and exploitation of
incapacitated adults.

6. Contract Monitoring:
The State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services shall monitor the
contract by conducting announced and/or unannounced site reviews for compliance with the
terms in the agreement for up to four (4) years from the end period of the most recent
contract.

7. Entire Agreement:

The following documents are incorporated by reference into this Agreement and they
constitute the entire Agreement between the State and the Contractor: General Provisions
(P-37), Exhibit A Scope of Services, Exhibit B Purchase of Services, Exhibit B-1 Dental Fee
Schedule, Exhibit C Special Provisions, Exhibit C-1 Additional Special Provisions, Exhibit D
Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace, Exhibit E Certification Regarding Lobbying,
Exhibit F Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters,
Exhibit G Certification Regarding the American’s With Disabilities Act Compliance, Exhibit H
Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke, Exhibit | Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act Business Associate Agreement, and Exhibit J Certification
Regarding The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Compliance. In the
event of any conflict or contradiction between or among the Agreement documents, the
documents shall control in the above order of precedence.

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank

Exhibit A Contractor's Initials: \ \A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. Subject to the Contractor's compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the
Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services shall reimburse the Contractor for actual dental
service(s) provided by the contractor to eligible individuals, resulting from referrals made by
the DPHS Oral Health Program Manager. Reimbursement shall be based on the Senior
Oral Health Program, Dental Fee Schedule, identified in Exhibit B-1.

2. Reimbursement Limits per Patient. Reimbursement is limited to $1,500 per patient per
state fiscal year, depending on the availability of funding. Any additional treatment that
exceeds the limit per patient shall be at the sole expense of the dentist.

3. Price Limitation. This Agreement is one of multiple Agreements that will serve the Senior
Oral Health Program. No maximum or minimum client and service volume is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the price limitation among all Agreements is identified in Block 1.8 of the P-37
for the duration of the Agreement.

4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that payment under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any
Federal or State Law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been satisfactory completed in accordance with the terms and condition of
this Agreement.

5. The funding source for this Agreement for Dental Services is 100% federal funds from the
Administration for Community Living, Title Ili, Part D, Disease Prevention and Health
Promotion Services, CFDA 93.043.

6. Contract dentists shall complete and submit Dental Claim Forms provided by the Bureau of
Elderly and Adult Services for each client, due within 15 days from the date of treatment.

Dental Claim forms shall be sent to:

Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services

Supervisor, Community Programs and Long-Term Care
Governor Hugh Gallen Office Park, Brown Building

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, N.H. 03301

7. The contractor shall have or secure a vendor number with the State of New Hampshire to
receive payment from the DHHS.

8. The Contractor shall comply with the necessary steps established by the Department for
making payments to vendors using Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT). Exceptions to using
EFT for payment shall be made upon prior approval of the BEAS Financial Manager or
designee.

Exhibit B Contractor’s Initials: _\
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Exhibit B-1

Code

D0140
D0150
D0210
D0220
D0230
D0330
D2140
D2150
D2160
D2161
D2330
D2331
D2332
D2335
D2391
D2392
D2393
D2394
D4341
D4355
D5110
D5120
D5130
D5140
D5211
D5212
D5650
D5410
D5411
D5421
D5422
D5750

Exhibit B-1
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Senior Oral Health Program
Dental Fee Schedule

Procedure

Limited oral evaluation
Comprehensive oral evaluation
Intraoral-complete series
Intraoral-Periapical 1st film
Intraoral-Periapical ea. add'l
Panoramic film

Amalgam - 1 surface
Amalgam - 2 surface
Amalgam - 3 surface
Amalgam - 4/4+ surface
Resin-1 surface anterior
Resin-2 surface anterior
Resin-3 surface anterior
Resin-4/4+ surface anterior
Resin-1 surface posterior
Resin-2 surface posterior
Resin-3 surface posterior
Resin-4/4+ surface posterior

Periodontal scaling/root planing (per quadrant)

Full mouth debridement

Complete denture-maxillary
Complete denture-mandibular
Immediate denture-maxillary
Immediate denture-mandibular
Maxillary partial-resin base
Mandibular partial-resin base

Add tooth to existing partial

Adjust complete denture, maxillary
Adjust complete denture, mandibular
Adjust partial denture, maxillary
Adjust partial denture, mandibular
Reline complete maxillary denture

Fee
60.00
62.00
96.00
15.00
10.00

$ 83.00

$ 150.00

$ 155.00

$180.00

$200.00
$131.00
$143.00
$147.00

$ 165.00

$ 150.00

$ 155.00

$ 180.00

$200.00

$100.00
$90.00

$ 800.00

$ 800.00

$ 875.00

$ 875.00

$ 600.00

$600.00

$ 68.00

$ 65.00

$ 65.00

$ 55.00

$

$

P PH & B &

55.00
244.00
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Exhibit B-1

Senior Oral Health Program
Dental Fee Schedule

Code Procedure Fee
D5751 Reline complete mandibular denture $244.00
D5760 Reline maxillary partial denture $ 85.00
D5761 Reline mandibular partial denture $ 85.00
D7140 Extraction-erupted/exposed $150.00
D7210 Extraction-surgical-imp bony $225.00
Exhibit B-1 Contractor's Initials: _}
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established,
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials \ k §
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include ali records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials VWA
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
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subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

16.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

el
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this
Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any
subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal
legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or
availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of
Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in
excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination
or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account
into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language:
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the
State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to
terminate the Agreement.
10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement,
including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services
under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.
10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data
requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall
provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.
10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted
delivery of services in the Transition Plan.
10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about
the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.3 and 14.1.4 of the General Provisions of this contract are added:

14.1.3 professional liability against wrongful act, occurrence or personal injury offense limit for
coverages for professional liability, good samaritan liability, malpractice liability, and personal injury
liability, in amounts of not less than $1,000,000 each claim and $3,000,000 general aggregate; and

14.1.4 the contractor shall be responsible that the dentist performing services under this agreement
maintains professional liability insurance.

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractors Initials: L}/ﬁ
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlied substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

Families First 05 the Greater Seacoast

L&ha!l’; Lo e e
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

£y "o " ous

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials M
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: . R 4
Famlies Eicot o4 +the Greakrsr Seccoas

JQJIa,w Wa LB TV sp—
Date Name: JHelen G- Taf+ ]
Title: Execuvtive 'Dare,dror/ P(es'-cleﬂf

/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts
to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name: ; »
Camilice Eicst ok the Greake Seacoas?”

la!ta} 1.3 NHM&T{r
Date ame: n > . £+ .
Title: éifﬁ; five %,(e&cf | Pre sictent
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Famil(es Eirst of the Greader Seacoast

12 /ializ \ijbv«z,/w/
Date Name: [delen @B ~Taf4
Title: ExecvHve. 'D;rf(«}-of/ Preg{cf,ﬂmf‘
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those
parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business Associate” shall
mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to
protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

Definitions

1. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.

2. "Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

3. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

4. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

5. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

6. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

7. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIIl, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

8. "HIPAA’ means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191
and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR
Parts 160, 162 and 164.

9. ‘“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and
shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

10. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department of Health
and Human Services.

11. "Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business
Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

12. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

13. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

14. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

15. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured by
a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing
organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

16. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under
45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials M’_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

1. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

2.1.  For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
2.2.  Asrequired by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
2.3. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

3. Tothe extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from
the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required
by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such
third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of
such breach.

4. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services
under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the
basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an
opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such
disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has
exhausted all remedies.

5. Ifthe Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safequards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional
restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by
any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

1. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any
use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving
Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402.

2. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth in,
the HITECH Act, Subtitie D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

3. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business
Assaciate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity's
compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

4. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use
and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided
under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party
beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate agreements with Contractor’s intended business
associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and
indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of
this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected health information.

5. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements,
policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes
of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’'s compliance with the terms of the
Agreement.

Business Associate Agreement

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials M
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6. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by
Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

7. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate
shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such
amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

8. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

9. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

10. In the event any individua! requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request
to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

11. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies
or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has
been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the
protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains
such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or
all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

1. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

2. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section
164.508.

3. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the
Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials _} k |§
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Miscellaneous

1. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have
the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in
the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

2. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

3. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with respect
to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

4. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

5. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be
given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit |
are declared severable.

6. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Contractor Name: . :
Famdies F,rst of the Greaer Seccoast

121213 o _» 73—

Date® ' Name: e len 2. Tal- -
Title:  ExXecohve Daariﬁo s / Fresident
State Agency Name:
32213 % A /@o i
Date Name:
Title:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
in accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SOONOIOR LN =

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

Famiies First of+the Greaku Seaccast

)&J;}/d lu",}g,' A<
Date U Name: Helen &. ofFt
Title: Frecotiye D\rcd—@"/ Pfes}M
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: g5~ 44 - “{58 !

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

\/ NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials I,Q@—
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State of Nefw Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that FAMILIES FIRST OF THE GREATER SEACOAST is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed August 28, 1986. I further certify that it is in good standing
as far as this office is concerned, haviﬁg filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by

law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 1** day of April A.D. 2013

e, Sk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Linda Sanborn, do hereby certify that:

1. T am a duly elected Clerk of Families First of the Greater Seacoast.

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the
Board of Directors of the Corporation duly held on December 12, 2013.

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of New
Hampshire, acting through its Department of Health and Human Services, for the
provision of Senior Oral Health Services.

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director/President is hereby authorized on behalf of
this Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and
effect as of the 12" day of December, 2013.

4. Helen B. Taft is the duly elected Executive Director/President of the Corporation.

Dk

Linda Sanborn, Treasurer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 12th day of December, 2013 by

Linda Sanborn.
/W Gy Q&éﬁ/

Nota'ry Public/]égt\lce of the Peace
Iy Commission Expiras March 7, 2017

Commission Expires:
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ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE vraaromns

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: H the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policles may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in Heu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER | Nawg; - Tamie Rhodes CIC CISR
Tobey & Merrill Insurance %’me (603) 926-7655 (AIG, Ng): (603)926-2135
20 High Street | ADOREss. tamie@tobeymerrill . com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAKC 2
Hampton NH 03842-2214 iNSURERA :Peerless Indemnity 18333
INSURED wnsurer 8 :Peerless Insurance 24198
FAMILIES FIRST OF THE GREATER SEACOAST INSURER C :
100 CAMPUS DR STE 12 INSURER D :
Suite 12 INSURERE :
PORTSMOUTH NH 03801 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:CL131901560 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOVWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

'L“I%‘ TYPE OF INSURANCE NR | POLICY NUMBER mm LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
X | coMMERCIAL GENERAL LIaBILITY DR O R ey | $ 50,000
A X ] CLAIMS-MADE [:] OCCUR poP8358757 R2/29/201202/29/2013| b exp any one person) | $ 5,000
- PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 2,000,000
- GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 4,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LMIT APPLIES PER PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 4,000, 000]
?‘ POLICY I_I P_ER(?T‘ J_| LOC $
AUTOMOBILE LABILITY COMBINED SRGCE T | 1,000,000
B __}_{] ANY AUTO LAS BODILY NJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED 375202 12/29/201212/29/2013| BODILY NJURY (Per accidert)| $
|| a0T0s AUTOS
NON-OWNED [PROPERTY DAMAGE s
|| HIRED ALTOS AUTOS | (Por acadont)
Undennsured motonst $ 1,000,000
_}_{_ UMBRELLALUB | | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
B EXCESS LIAB CLAMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 1,000,000
OED | | RETENTION § ug353458 N2/29/2012012/29/2013 s
B e, T X [
gglr@ml%&gwlﬁgmwms ‘E’ NIA E L EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
(Mancatory in NH) HC5055429 12/29/201202/29/2013( ¢ | picpack - EnEMPLOYVER § 1,000,000
b sifg?é%bﬁ g?%PEnmons below £ L DISEASE - POLICY LMIT | § 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS { VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Scheduie, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED WN
. ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

NH Dept. of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant st

Concord, NH 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
s D - .
B Lizotte CIC/BRL -f‘Sc»ém-— ‘ \\’ﬁfﬁ ccc
ACORD 25 (2010/05) © 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

INSO235 (20:005) 01 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



1. ISSUE DATE: 5/15/2013

2a. FTCA DEEMING NOTICE NO.:
1-F00001058-13-01

2b. Supersedes: []

3. COVERAGE PERIOD:
. . DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
FROM: 1/1/2014 THROUGH: 12/31/2014 HUMAN SERVICES

. HEALTH RESOURCES AND SERVICES
4. NOTICE TYPE: Renewal ADMINISTRATION

5a. ENTITY NAME AND ADDRESS:

Families First of Greater Seacoast

100 CAMPUS DRIVE STE 12
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801-5892

NOTICE OF DEEMING ACTION

FEDERAL TORT CLAIMS ACT AUTHORIZATION:

6. ENTITY TYPE: Grantee Federally Supported Health Centers Assistance Act
(FSHCAA), as amended,

Sections 224(g)-(n) of the Public Health Service (PHS)

7. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: Act, 42 U.S.C. § 233(g)-(n)

Helen B Taft, MPA

8a. GRANTEE ORGANIZATION:
Families First of Greater Seacoast

8b. GRANT NUMBER: H80CS00239

9. THIS ACTION IS BASED ON THE INFORMATION SUBMITTED TO, AND AS APPROVED BY HRSA, AS
REQUIRED UNDER 42 U.S.C. § 233(h) FOR THE ABOVE TITLED ENTITY AND IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS
AND CONDITIONS INCORPORATED EITHER DIRECTLY OR BY REFERENCE IN THE FOLLOWING:

a. The authorizing program legislation cited above.
b. The program regulation cited above, and,
c. HRSA's FTCA-related policies and procedures.

In the event there are conflicting or otherwise inconsistent policies applicable to the program, the above order of
recedence shall prevail.

10. Remarks:

The check box [x] in the supersedes field indicates that this notice supersedes any and all active NDAs and
rescinds any and all future NDAs issued prior to this notice.

Electronically signed by Jim Macrae, Associate Administrator for Primary Health Care on: 5/15/2013 5:13:58
PM




FTCA DEEMING NOTICE NO.: GRANT NUMBER:
1-FO0001058-13-01 H80CS00239

Families First of Greater Seacoast
100 CAMPUS DRIVE STE 12
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801-5892

Dear Helen B Taft, MPA:

The Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA), in accordance with the Federally Supported Health
Centers Assistance Act (FSHCAA), as amended, sections 224(g)-(n) of the Public Health Service (PHS) Act, 42
U.S.C. §§ 233(g)-(n), deems Families First of Greater Seacoast to be an employee of the PHS, for the purposes of
section 224, effective 1/1/2014 through 12/31/2014.

Section 224(a) of the PHS Act provides liability protection under the Federal Tort Claims Act (FTCA), 28 U.S.C. §§
1346(b), 2672, or by alternative benefits provided by the United States where the availability of such benefits
precludes a remedy under the FTCA, for damage for personal injury, including death, resulting from the
performance of medical, surgical, dental, or related functions by PHS employees while acting within the scope of
such employment. This protection is exclusive of any other civil action or proceeding. Coverage extends to deemed
entities and their (1) officers; (2) governing board members; (3) full- and part-time employees; and (4) contractors
who are licensed or certified individual health care practitioners providing full-time services (i.e., on average at least
32%2 hours per week for the entity for the period of the contract), or, if providing an average of less than 32%2 hours
per week of such service, are licensed or certified providers in the fields of family practice, general internal medicine,
general pediatrics, or obstetrics/gynecology. Volunteers are neither employees nor contractors and therefore are not
eligible for FTCA coverage under FSHCAA.

This Notice of Deeming Action (NDA) is also confirmation of medical malpractice coverage for both Families First of
Greater Seacoast and its covered individuals as described above. This NDA, along with documentation confirming
employment or contractor status with the deemed entity, may be used to show liability coverage for damage for
personal injury, including death, resulting from the performance of medical, surgical, dental, or related functions by
PHS employees while acting within the scope of such employment.

In addition, FTCA coverage is comparable to an "occurrence" policy without a monetary cap. Therefore, any
coverage limits that may be mandated by other organizations are met.

This action is based on the information provided in your FTCA deeming application, as required under 42 U.S.C. §
233(h), with regard to your entity's: (1) implementation of appropriate policies and procedures to reduce the risk of
malpractice and litigation; (2) review and verification of professional credentials and privileges, references, claims
history, fitness, professional review organization findings, and licensure status of health professionals; (3)
cooperation with the Department of Justice (DOJ) in the defense of claims and actions to prevent claims in the
future; and (4) cooperation with DOJ in providing information related to previous malpractice claims history.

Deemed health centers must continue to receive funding under Section 330 of the PHS Act, 42 U.S.C. § 254b, in
order to maintain coverage as a deemed PHS employee. If the deemed entity loses its Section 330 funding, such
coverage will end immediately upon termination of the grant. In addition to the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements, every deemed health center is expected to follow HRSA's FTCA-related policies and procedures,
which may be found online at http://www.bphc.hrsa.gov.

For further information, please contact your HRSA Project Officer as listed on your Notice of Grant Award or the
Bureau of Primary Health Care (BPHC) Help Line at 1-877-974-2742 or bphchelpline@hrsa.gov.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors
Families First of the Greater Seacoast
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Families First of the Greater Seacoast (a
nonprofit organization) which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012,
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of interna! control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we pian and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
"presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

74-7815
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To the Board of Directors
Families First of the Greater Seacoast

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Families First of the Greater Seacoast as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Augusta, Maine
November 5, 2013



Families First of the Greater Seacoast

Statements of Financial Position

June 30,

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash (note 2)
Cash, fiscal agent (note 9)
Grants receivable (note 3)
Accounts receivable, net (notes 1 and 4)
Current portion of pledges receivable (notes 1 and 5)
Other receivables (note 6)
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Pledges receivable, net of current (notes 1 and 5)

Property and Equipment, Net (Notes 1 and 7)

Investments
Endowment (notes 8 and 19)
Board designated

Total Investments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Amount due, fiscal agent (note 9)
Deferred revenue
Total Current Liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted (notes 8 and 12)
Permanently restricted (notes 8 and 13)
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

2013 2012
$ 74,547 401,496
195 3,195
67,300 60,265
131,560 134,102
336,748 199,012
26,620 52,998
15,133 20,149
652,103 871,217
108,301
247,992 336,726
1,392,530 1,267,448
66,360 62,409
1,458,890 1,328,857
$ 2,358,985 2,646,101
$ 85,519 63,918
287,904 224,664
195 3,195
24,476 113,674
398,094 405,351
177,628 622,628
583,076 417,935
1,200,187 1,200,187
1,960,891 2,240,750
$ 2,358,985 2,646,101

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Families First of the Greater Seacoast

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30,

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments tc reconcile change in net assets
to net cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments
Provision for bad debt
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Cash, fiscai agent
Grants receivable
Accounts receivable
Pledges receivable
Other receivable
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Amount due, fiscal agent
Deferred revenue
Total adjustments
Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment
Net (purchase) proceeds from sale of investments
Net cash flows from investing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2013 2012
$ (279,859) $ (30,673)
98,920 108,863
(137,454) 56,711
43,860 46,017
3,660 850
(7,035) 22,587
{41,318) (29,206)
(29,435) (28,379)
26,378 (48,074)
5,016 17,057
21,602 17,103
63,240 6,714
(3,000) (850)
(89,098) 63,574
(45,324) 233,867
(325,183) 203,194
(10,186) (72,899)
8,420 (6)
(1,766) (72,905)
{326,949) 130,289
401,496 271,207
$ 74,547 $ 401,496

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Families First

support for families...health care for all

Mission Statement

Families First Health and Support Center contributes to the health and well-
being of the Seacoast community by providing a broad range of health and
family services to all, regardless of ability to pay.

Vision Statement

We envision a strong community that provides fully for the health and well-
being of all its members.

Guiding Principles
Families First will:

. offer a broad array of health and family services to meet evolving
community needs;

. meet a standard of excellence in all services;

. ensure that no one is turned away due to inability to pay;

. treat clients respectfully and with concern for dignity;

. integrate services wherever possible;

. partner with other organizations to help realize our vision.



Patricia Locuratolo, MD, Chair
Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 2008

Mary Schleyer, Vice Chair

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 10/2009

Kristen Hanley, Secretary

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 2007

Linda Sanborn, Treasurer

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 2006

Karin Barndollar

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 10/2009

Marsha Filion

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since: 07/2012

Barbara Henry

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 8/2012

Board of Directors
FY14

Jack Jamison

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 2006

Sarah Knowlton

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 2010

Josephine Lamprey

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 10/2011

Kathleen MacLeod

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 2001-2003 and 2005

Ronda Macleod

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 6/2013

David McNicholas

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 4/2013

Edna Mosher

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 04/2013

Families First of the Greater Seacoast

Tom Newbold

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 09/2007

John Pelletier

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 10/2009

Donna Ryan

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 2005

Daniel Schwarz

Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 2002-2010 and 8/2011

Richard Senger, Director Emeritus
Families First Health & Support Center
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Member since 1986

Revised: 12/11/2013



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL FISCAL YEAR _ 2014-2015 .

Agency Name:

SFY

2014

2015

Families First of the Greater Seacoast

NAME
Helen B.Taft
David C.

Choate

Georgina
Clark

Helen B.Taft

David C.
Choate

Georgina
Clark

POSITION
TITLE

Executive
Director

Finance
Director

Family
Services
Director

Executive
Director

Finance
Director

Family
Services
Director

ANNUAL
SALARY
$105,769

$69,921

$55,432

$108,413

$71,669

$56,817

% FROM
CONTRACT
0.00%

0.00%

5.00%

0.00%

0.00%

5.00%

Contrator Initials: [' M{
Date: \ LA




A.J. Homicz, DDS, FAGD

EDUCATION

Cornell University
School of Arts and Sciences, 1963-1967, A.B. — Biological Sciences

Columbia University
School of Dental and Oral Surgery, 1967-1971, D.D.S
Member, Omicron Kappa Upsilon (academic honorary society)

PROFESSIONAL

Families First Health and Support Center, Portsmouth, NH
Dental Director (volunteer position), 2003-present

Private Practice
General Practice, Antrim, NH, 1973-2005

United States Navy
Portsmouth Naval Shipyard, 1971-1973, Lt., Dental Corps

AWARDS, HONORS AND FELLOWSHIPS

BiState Primary Care Association President’s Award, 2005
Outstanding contribution to assuring health care to vulnerable populations

Fellowship, Academy of General Dentistry, 1997
Fellowship, American College of Dentists, 2003
Fellowship, International College of Dentists, 2005

Greater Manchester Leadership Council Award — 2005
Recognition for leadership in improving oral health in the community

Watch Your Mouth Champion - 2006
Achievement in regional oral health awareness campaign

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS & COMMITTEES

American Association of Public Health Dentistry

American Dental Association
Delegate, 2002, 2003, 2004
Reference Committee, 2004
Council on Access, Prevention & Interprofessional Relations, 2007-Present

Academy of General Dentistry

Coalition for NH Oral Health Action
Chair, 2006-2008

National Network for Oral Health Access

New Hampshire Dental Society
President, 2004-2005
Chair, Task Force on Access, 2003-2008
Chair, Give Kids a Smile, 2003, 2004



LUCAS CHARLES HOMICZ

PERSONAL INFORMATION

EDUCATION

Aug 2002 to May 2006

Aug 1998 to May 2002

Captain, United States Army Dental Corps
DOB: 05 January 1979, Peterborough, New Hampshire

Doctor of Dental Surgery (DDS)

Columbia University, School of Dental and Oral Surgery
New York, New York

Bachelors of Arts (BA)

Villanova University, College of Liberal Arts and Science
Villanova, Pennsylvania

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Feb 2009 to present

Dec 2007 to Feb 2009

Sep 2006 to Dec 2007

Lucas Homicz, DDS

Walter Reed Dental Activity
Walter Reed Army Medical Center

Currently serving as a general dentist in the Restorative
Department, delivering care to over 12,000 beneficiaries.
Additional duties include Privacy and HTPAA Officer,
Infection Control Officer and Dental Fitness Officer.

561* Medical Company (Dental Services)

USAG Grafenwoehr, Germany

Served as a General Dental Officer assigned to Grafenwoehr
Dental Clinic, delivering comprehensive dental care to soldiers,

dependants and civilians.

561* Medical Company (Dental Services)

Forward Operating Base Endurance, Iraq

Page | June 2009



Responsibilities included providing emergency, sick call and
comprehensive care to coalition forces in the Al- Qayyarah
area of responsibility. Conducted multiple courses of
instruction for dental assistants. Acted as Assistant Officer in

Charge.

Sep 2005 10 Apr 2006 Heritage Health Center
New York City, New York

Part time general practice intern
Sep 2006 to Mar 2006 Bronx Lebanon Hospital

New York City, New York

Part time general practice intern
Jul 2004 Harlem Hospital

New York City, New York

Oral Surgery intern

Sep 2004- May 2005 Thelma C. Adair Center
New York City, New York
Part time general practice intern working with elderly,

homeless and HIV positive patients.

Jun 2001 to Aug 2001 Cluver, Munley and Brown Dental
Broomall, Pennsylvania

Private practice dental assistant

MILITARY TRAINING & COURSES

Jun 2003 to Aug 2003 US Army Medical Department Officer Basic Course
Fort Sam Houston, Texas

Aug 1998 to Sep 1999 Naval Reserve Officer Training Corps
Villanova, Pennsylvania

AWARDS, SCHOLARSHIPS AND HONORS

2009 Army Commendation Medal
For service in the 561 Medical Company, 421* Medical

Battalion, in Grafenwoehr, Germany

2007 Army Commendation Medal
For service in support of Operation Iragi Freedom 06-08

Lucas Homicz. DDS Page 2 June 2009



2002-2006 US Army Health Professional Scholarship Program

HPSP Scholarship Recipient

2002-2003 National Society of Collegiate Scholars
Member- Villanova University Chapter

LICENSURES AND CERTIFICATIONS

Jun 2006 New Hampshire Dental License #03538
Apr 2010 Certification in Basic Life Support (BLS)
2006 Invisalign® Orthodontics

Certification I and II

2005 Waterlase® Laser Dentistry
Fellowship Certification

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

Aug 2002 to present Member, American Dental Association
Mar 2008 to present Member, Academy of General Dentistry
Lucas Homicz, DDS Page 3

June 2009



Nii Norte Lokko, DMD

Work Experience

Families First Health & Support Center
Portsmouth, NH

General Dentist

Community Dental Care of Claremont
Claremont, NH
General Dentist

Allcare Dental and Dentures
Manchester, NH
Managing Clinical Director

Avis Goodwin Community Health Center
Dover, NH
Dental Director

Staff Dentist

Tufts University General Practice Residency
Waltham, MA
Dental Resident

Education
Tufts University School of Dental Medicine
GPR Certificate

Tufts University School of Dental Medicine
DMD degree

Luther College, Decorah, [A
BA in Biology

Memberships
New Hampshire Dental Society

American Dental Association
Academy of General Dentists

2/2009 to present

2009 to present

6/2008 to 2/2009

8/2006 to 5/2008

8/2004 to 5/2008

7/2003 to 6/2004

7/2003 to 6/2004

8/1999 to 5/2003

9/1996 to 5/1999



CURRICULUM VITAE
JOHN FITZSIMONS, DMD, MMS

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
Families First Health and Support Center, Portsmouth, NH
Staff Dentist, July 2012-Present

Penobscot Community Health Care General Practice Residency, Bangor, ME
PGY-1, General Practice Resident July 2011- July2012
Fifty patient contact hours per week, comprehensive clinical care in an ambulatory setting

Emphasis on diagnosis & treatment of acute dental emergencies, endodontics, and oral surgery

Specialty Training: (1-2 days/ month, Direct Supervision by Specialist)

Periodontics: Osseous Grafting, & Placement of Dental Implants (Nobel Biocare, Camlog)
Oral Surgery: Surgical Extractions, Soft Tissue & Partial Boney Impactions, Biopsies
Orthodontics: Interceptive Orthodontic Treatment, Rapid Palatal Expansion, Lip Bumpers
Prosthodontics: Removable and Fixed Prosthesis, Restoration of Nobel and Camlog Implants

Clinical Rotations (Eastern Maine Medical Center, St. Joseph’s Hospital)

Anesthesiology: Airway Maintenance & Intubation (BVM, LMAs &ET tubes)

Family Medicine: (Observation) Management of Chronic Pain & lliness, Health Promotion
Pediatric Medicine: (Independent) Diagnosis Respiratory lliness, AOM, cultures, health
promotion wellness visits

Pediatric Dentistry: Pediatric treatment with the Lutheran Pediatric Dentistry Program
Emergency Medicine: Diagnosis, management acute dental emergencies at Eastern Maine
Medical Center E.R. Observation of non-dental acute emergencies.

Togus Veterans Hospital Dental Externship, Augusta, ME January 2010-March 2010

Pre-doctoral Dental Externship (10 weeks)

Brigham and Women's Hospital, Brookside Dental Center, Jamaica Plain, MA

BU (APEX Program) Applied Professional Experience I (Ten Weeks) May 2007-July2007

BU (APEX Program) Applied Professional Experience Il (Ten Weeks) January 2008-March 2008

EDUCATION

Boston University Henry M. Goldman School of Dental Medicine

Doctor of Dental Medicine, cum laude 2011

Master of Medical Sciences, Division of Dental Public Health 2011

Thesis: “Comparative Efficacy of Xylitol Delivery Systems in Caries Prevention”

First Reader: Ana Karina Mascarenhas, DPH,MPH,BDS (President American Academy Dental
Public Health)

Boston University College of Arts & Sciences
Bachelor of Arts, Psychology, Minor Chemistry, Class of 2002

49



LICENSURE AND CERTIFICATION

Licensed to Practice in the State of New Hampshire (NH, 03907) July 2013-Present
Licensed to Practice in the State of Maine (DEN4197) June 2011-Present

(ACLS) Advanced Certification in Life Support, June 2012

Nitrous Oxide Sedation (ADA Accredited Course, National Certification) Anticipated June 2012
Invisalign Certification Part | March 2008

Credentialed, Eastern Maine Medical Center, Bangor, ME July 2011

Credentialed, St. Joseph’s Hospital, Bangor, ME March 2012

Joint Commission of Dental Examiners, Part |, [l Feb 2008, Mar 2010

Western Regional Board Exam (WREB) April 2010

Northeast Regional Board (NERB) Diagnostic Skills Exam (DSE) March 2011

Teaching Experience

Kaplan Test Preparation & Admissions, Inc., Cambridge, MA Jan 2005-Dec. 2009
Teacher, DAT, OAT, SAT

Contributing Author, Kaplan Medical Inc. (NBDE Part 1,1l Question Bank) 2010
Boston University Department of Psychology 2001-2002

Teacher’s Assistant, Introductory Course PS 101

INVITATIONAL PUBLIC SPEAKING/ PRESENTATIONS

Maine Veterans Home, Department of Veterans Affairs, Bangor, Maine

Speaker, Oral Health/Intra-Oral Exams for Healthcare Providers February 2012

Robert Wood Johnson Foundation Summer Pipeline Program, Boston University 2010,2009,2008
Speaker, Dental Admissions Test and the Admissions Process

Northeast Association of Advisors to Health Professions Meeting, Portland, ME April 2005
Speaker, Dental Admissions Testing and the Application Process

COMMUNITY SERVICE/ VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

Caring Hands of Maine, Back to School Smile Day, Ellsworth, ME 2011
Project White Coat, Boston University School of Dental Medicine 2010
Partners for Rural Health in the Dominican Republic 2006

MEMBERSHIPS
(AGD) American Academy of General Dentistry- Maine Chapter- Member 347859 2012-Present
(ASDA) American Dental Student Association 2007-2012

References & Continuing Education Available Upon Request
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Senior Oral Health Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Department of Health and Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
555 Auburn Street
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Manchester, NH 03101
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number
603-621-3558 05-95-48-481010-89170000- | June 30, 2015 $44,618.00
102-500731
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Mary Maggioncalda, Administrator 603 271-9096
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
-~ l . ‘\\_/ ' < Q ! D
U\ ElinTreanss , CF

1.13  Acknowledgement: State of JH , County of _Hi[lsborov 9k

Ontt l lqglé§qh;qm ,undersngned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the

person nmg f@led in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1 12 \\ é ...............
1. L& V-Sl§nmm I\r_tag Public o

S P\fﬁzsé e i = (j ‘e) Q

= i e =

z S ; IOVNK (V7

2 gl SPS N
1. 13@, JmEand '%tte af Notary or Justice of the Peace

HAM?

”/lun\\\\\\

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

3/{\/*/\/ 4@6/7(“"/‘/ HC\LY)O, HSSoélq'lC CO’mYﬁ|S§I‘Oﬂ€F

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By: /%Md@/é on /3 y3

1.18 Approval by the G?ernor and Executive Council

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: ..4
Date: /77 QZO’/ 4



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thercof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

—_—

Contractor Initials: g@
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program
Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Program Name: Senior Oral Health Program
1.1. Purpose:

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide dental treatment to adults age 60 years or older
in need of early, imminent or immediate care. The goal of the program is to: 1) identify adults
age 60 and over who are in obvious need of dental care and treatment, as described above,
and who lack resources to pay for care; 2) coordinate needed dental care and treatment
with a participating dentist/dental practice; and 3) alleviate pain, infection and suffering,
and/or restore individuals’ ability to eat comfortably.

Under the Senior Oral Health Program, a licensed community-based dental hygienist,
working under the supervision of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS),
Division of Public Health Services’ (DPHS) Oral Health Program Manager, shall conduct
dental screenings at designated senior center/congregate meal sites. The hygienist shall
screen and identify older adults with urgent need (pain and/or infection) or otherwise in need
of urgent or early care (within the next several weeks) and will provide this information to the
DHHS DPHS’ Oral Health Program Manager. Older adults identified as being in need of
early, imminent or immediate care shall be referred by the DHHS DPHS’ Oral Health
Program Manager to a participating dental practice to receive dental treatment. To ensure
that individuals follow-through with the referral, the Oral Health Program Manager shall
coordinate with the participating dental practice and the individual to facilitate appointments
as needed.

2. Provision of Services:
Under this agreement dentists treating individuals referred to their practices shall:

2.1 Accept referrals from the DHHS DPHS’ Oral Health Program Manager.

2.2 Complete an oral health assessment and develop a treatment plan based on identified
needs.

2.3 Schedule appointments and follow up for dental services based on the treatment plan.

2.4 Perform, with the individual’s approval, dental services and treatment.

3. Licensing Requirements:
Dentist(s) performing services under this agreement, including any subcontract agreements,
must possess a current dental license issued by the State of New Hampshire Board of
Dental Examiners.

4. Equal Access to services:
To ensure equal access to quality services, the Contractor, when feasible and appropriate,
shall make reasonable efforts to provide clients of limited English proficiency (LEP) with
interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English as
their primary language and whose skills in listening to, speaking, or reading English are
such that they are unable to adequately understand and participate in the care or in the
services provided to them without language assistance.

Exhibit A Contractor’s Initials: 75
Page 1 of 2 Date: 70



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program
Exhibit A

5. DHHS’ Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services' (BEAS) State Registry:
Contractors which are licensed, certified or funded by the DHHS shall meet the
requirements of RSA 161-F: 49 Registry, VI, which requires that all employers of programs
that are licensed, certified, or funded by the NH Department of Health and Human Services
to provide services, submit the name of prospective employees who may have client contact
for review against the registry of founded reports of abuse, neglect, and exploitation of
incapacitated adults.

6. Contract Monitoring:
The State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services shall monitor the
contract by conducting announced and/or unannounced site reviews for compliance with the
terms in the agreement for up to four (4) years from the end period of the most recent
contract.

7. Entire Agreement:

The following documents are incorporated by reference into this Agreement and they
constitute the entire Agreement between the State and the Contractor: General Provisions
(P-37), Exhibit A Scope of Services, Exhibit B Purchase of Services, Exhibit B-1 Dental Fee
Schedule, Exhibit C Special Provisions, Exhibit C-1 Additional Special Provisions, Exhibit D
Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace, Exhibit E Certification Regarding Lobbying,
Exhibit F Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters,
Exhibit G Certification Regarding the American’s With Disabilities Act Compliance, Exhibit H
Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke, Exhibit | Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act Business Associate Agreement, and Exhibit J Certification
Regarding The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Compliance. In the
event of any conflict or contradiction between or among the Agreement documents, the
documents shall control in the above order of precedence.

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank

Exhibit A Contractor’s Initials: zg_ﬂ
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. Subject to the Contractor's compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the
Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services shall reimburse the Contractor for actual dental
service(s) provided by the contractor to eligible individuals, resuiting from referrals made by
the DPHS Oral Health Program Manager. Reimbursement shall be based on the Senior
Oral Health Program, Dental Fee Schedule, identified in Exhibit B-1.

2. Reimbursement Limits per Patient. Reimbursement is limited to $1,500 per patient per
state fiscal year, depending on the availability of funding. Any additional treatment that
exceeds the limit per patient shall be at the sole expense of the dentist.

3. Price Limitation. This Agreement is one of multiple Agreements that will serve the Senior
Oral Health Program. No maximum or minimum client and service volume is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the price limitation among all Agreements is identified in Block 1.8 of the P-37
for the duration of the Agreement.

4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that payment under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any
Federal or State Law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been satisfactory completed in accordance with the terms and condition of
this Agreement.

5. The funding source for this Agreement for Dental Services is 100% federal funds from the
Administration for Community Living, Title Ill, Part D, Disease Prevention and Health
Promotion Services, CFDA 93.043.

6. Contract dentists shall complete and submit Dental Claim Forms provided by the Bureau of
Elderly and Adult Services for each client, due within 15 days from the date of treatment.

Dental Claim forms shall be sent to:

Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services

Supervisor, Community Programs and Long-Term Care
Governor Hugh Gallen Office Park, Brown Building

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, N.H. 03301

7. The contractor shall have or secure a vendor number with the State of New Hampshire to
receive payment from the DHHS.

8. The Contractor shall comply with the necessary steps established by the Department for
making payments to vendors using Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT). Exceptions to using
EFT for payment shall be made upon prior approval of the BEAS Financial Manager or
designee.

Exhibit B Contractor's Initials: (.7
Page 1 of 1 Date: //7/3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Exhibit B-1

Exhibit B-1
Page 1 of 2

Senior Oral Health Program
Dental Fee Schedule

Procedure

Limited oral evaluation
Comprehensive oral evaluation
Intraoral-complete series
Intraoral-Periapical 1st film
Intraoral-Periapical ea. add'l
Panoramic film

Amalgam - 1 surface

Amalgam - 2 surface

Amalgam - 3 surface

Amalgam - 4/4+ surface

Resin-1 surface anterior

Resin-2 surface anterior

Resin-3 surface anterior
Resin-4/4+ surface anterior
Resin-1 surface posterior

Resin-2 surface posterior

Resin-3 surface posterior
Resin-4/4+ surface posterior
Periodontal scaling/root planing (per quadrant)
Full mouth debridement
Complete denture-maxillary
Complete denture-mandibular
Immediate denture-maxillary
Immediate denture-mandibuiar
Maxillary partial-resin base
Mandibular partial-resin base

Add tooth to existing partial
Adjust complete denture, maxillary
Adjust complete denture, mandibular
Adjust partial denture, maxillary
Adjust partial denture, mandibular
Reline complete maxillary denture

Fee

h D NH N

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

60.00
62.00
96.00
15.00
10.00
83.00
150.00
155.00
180.00
200.00
131.00
143.00
147.00
165.00
150.00
155.00
180.00
200.00

$100.00

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$

Contractor’s Initials:
Date:

$90.00
800.00
800.00
875.00
875.00
600.00
600.00
68.00
65.00
65.00
55.00
55.00
244.00
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Oral Health Program

Exhibit B-1

Senior Oral Health Program
Dental Fee Schedule

Code Procedure Fee
D5751 Reline complete mandibular denture $244.00
D5760 Reline maxillary partial denture $ 85.00
D5761 Reline mandibular partial denture $ 85.00
D7140 Extraction-erupted/exposed $150.00
D7210 Extraction-surgical-imp bony $225.00
-
Exhibit B-1 Contractor's Initials: 27
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT C
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuals and,
in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

4. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a
payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to
influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract. The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is determined that payments, gratuities or offers of
employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or
Sub-Contractor.

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for any services provided
to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except
as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such
services.

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor's costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment in excess
of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders, the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;

8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of
costs;
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8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the
Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and
other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with
accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and
which are acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and
original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for matenals,
inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or
required by the Department.

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Penod, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility (including all
forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit. Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
Contractor fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations” and
the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by
the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of
audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

11. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by
the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the Department regarding the
use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials requiring such information in
connection with their official duties and for purposes directly connected to the administration of the services and the
Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for
any purpose not directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities
with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his attorney
or guardian.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in the Paragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

o
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12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following times
if requested by the Department.

12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all
costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the
Department.

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal and other information required by the
Department.

13. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and
all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses
claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the
amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

14. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared during or
resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Department
of Health and Human Services.

15. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership:
All materials (written, video, audio) produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS
before printing, production, distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines, posters, or
reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without prior written approval
from DHHS.

16. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for
providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an
order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with
the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

17. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with greater
expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience, but the Contractor shall
retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate
the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement
that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation
or imposing sanctions if the subcontractor’'s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same
contractual conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance with
those conditions.
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When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

+ Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating the function

¢ Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities and
how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's performance is not adequate

¢ Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

e Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

e DHHS shall review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall take corrective
action.

B
NH DHHS Contractor Initialg:
Standard Exhibit C — Special Provisions /
January 2013 Date: / / / y /ﬂ/ 3

Page 4 of 5 f




Page _ of

SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable and
reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance with state and federal
laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL.: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required by
the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuals by the Contractor
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue
for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period of
time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are referred
to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be
amended or revised from the time to time.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this Contract
will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT C-1

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of
Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or
in part, under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability
of funds, including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds
affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or
otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the
Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no
event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or
available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated
or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify
services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds
from any other source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the
General Provisions, Account Number, or any other account, in the event funds are
reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is
amended by adding the following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole
discretion of the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is
exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of
early termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of
clients receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those
needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any
information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement
and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the
Transition Plan to the State as requested.
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10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients
receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by
another entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a
process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
individuals about the transition.  The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract is deleted and the
following subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or
property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per
occurrence and excess/umbrella liability coverage in the amount of $15,000,000 per
occurrence;

4, Subparagraph 14.1.3 and 14.1.4 of the General Provisions of this contract are
added:

14.1.3 professional liability against wrongful act, occurrence or personal injury
offense limit for coverages for professional liability, good samaritan liability,
malpractice liability, and personal injury liability, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 each claim and $3,000,000 general aggregate; and

14.1.4 the contractor shall be responsible that the dentist performing services
under this agreement maintains professional liability insurance.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Reqgister (pages 21681-
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1 The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
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(c)

(d)

(e)
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Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under

subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted

¢ Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as

amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local

health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation

of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in

connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

355 Aubh\fn S+ }’V\qm@%%‘l‘v‘ nH 031063

Check [] if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

$S o JJOD'S' C_ovx‘\‘ "‘GLc,‘e‘
&d‘-;}-(S)PAJS h” Frome- %} = A \2’1) ){'

(Contractor Name) (Period Covered by thlS Certification)

g.".,n Treapre CEO

(Name & Title of Authorized Contractor Representative)

LF/ZJ\W"—" L/ //%//7)/ (

7

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Date) 7
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: through

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject
to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

UA\U/M&L\_, & LhpTecanne O ED

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
N4 Jne .
(Contractor Name) ¥ (Date)
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is
providing the certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result
in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human
Services’ (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of
the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify
such person from participation in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to
other remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary
participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

" ou

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions
and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.
See the attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should
the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by
DHHS.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: 24‘
Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters / / 3
January 2009 Date: // /5/ /9/

Page 10f3




Page of

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
maodification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person
who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may
terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and
its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen
property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (I)(b) of this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal

(contract).
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: 7(7/
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal
department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it
will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Chlrsa 8l Termnne  CEO

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Na’me & Title)
CatecSeals VN—J ////;//é é/j

(Contractor Name) (Date)
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

//7\/ <<.‘— l in T- r
(Contractor‘REpresentative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

SastecSenle MW e Wiz

(Contractor Name) A (Date)
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

%/ﬁw&u///w Alhn Tergmar  CEO

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representati\/e Name & Title)

NWH Jac I/ P9 43

(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initial::-Cij#(

Standard Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke / / .
January 2009 Date: // /5/ /7/ j
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT 1
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT
) Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.
13400.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

g “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

j.  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: ; Z
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k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

l.  “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

m. “Secretary ” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

) Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information,

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
11 As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
I11. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.
c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third

party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the
PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor InitialsW
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e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

3 Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402.

b. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

d. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s
intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement.

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524.

g Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

.
Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials:
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h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

j- In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

k. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHL. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

“) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR
Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: f]/
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o) Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the

Secretary.
6) Miscellaneous
a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall

have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which
can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of
this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.

. o e?
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Daactmen] of HeeMn ¢ Buman Secuices CactacGeala NU Ine

The State Agency Name

%/ﬁ@m

Name of the Contractor

?ZZA&L/Z%M

Signature of Authorized Representative

Shert ). Rockburn

Signature of Authorized Representative

g—lln Trc_&mr

Name of Authorized Representative

A, Pssocicle Commissionec

Name of Authorized Representative

CED

Title of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

I s 13

12]i5/12

Date !

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 6 of 6

Date

Contractor Initials: W
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

&?/%}WMN g/\'\n TPEQMA{" e FO

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractoipresentgtive Name & Title)
ﬁa&bﬂé_tﬂjs h”)lnc, // /%//‘f/{j
(Contractor Name) (Date)

Contractor initials:

j_
Date: // /w/j
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: M_— 55 7- 3LZ(A 7

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

x NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO 2$ YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount;
Name: _ Amount;
Name: _ Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

-
Contractor initials:
Date: //, / ‘7;/z)/2

Page # of Page # i




State of Nefe Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed November 6, 1967. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office

is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto

set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 4" day of April A.D. 2013

iy ikl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

(Corporation with Seal)
, Pelly Buyke - Assistact Secredany of the
(Corporation Representative Name) (Corporation Representative Titlé)

f&m\'ar Stals fJH Jue. , do hereby certify that:

(Corporation Name)

(1) 1 am the duly elected and acting Aﬁisﬁm‘f &C'Afé fory of the
(Corporation Representative Title)

Ed,sl/»(’f‘ S(Q / S NH / NC , a /\[ H corporation  (the
“Corporation”); !
(Corporation Name) (State of Incorporation)

(2) I maintain and have custody of and am familiar with the Seal and minute books of the Corporation;
(3) | am duly authorized to issue certificates;

(4) the following are true, accurate and complete copies of the resolutions adopted by the Board
of Directors of the Corporation at a meeting of the said Board of Directors held on the

a&dday of &‘d# ,20/3 , which meeting was duly held in accordance with

/\J H law and the by-laws of the Corporation:
(State of Incorporation)

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting by and
through the Department of Health and Human Services, providing for the performance by the Corporation
of certain Prgron services, and that the President (any Vice
President) (and the Treasurer) (or any of them acting singly) be and hereby (is) (are) authorized and
directed for and on behalf of this Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to take any
and all such actions and to execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver for and on behalf of this Corporation
any and all documents, agreements and other instruments (and any amendments, revisions or
modifications thereto) as (she) (he) (any of them) may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate to
accomplish the same;

RESOLVED: That the signature of any officer of this Corporation affixed to any instrument or document
described in or contemplated by these resolutions shall be conclusive evidence of the authority of said
officer to bind this Corporation thereby;

The forgoing resolutions have not been revoked, annulled or amended in any manner whatsoever, and
remain in full force and effect as of the date hereof; and the following person(s) (has) (have) been duly
elected and now occupy the office(s) indicated below

-
}\a’p’\\j J. é'ammon President Name

Vice President Name

Flia T‘!ﬂi:or

Treasurer Name




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand as the /‘755'/ dout Secretary

(Title) !
of the Corporation and have affixed its corporate seal this day of NWew bl | 20 _5_ .
%

tle)

4

(Seal)
STATE OF _AJ) dan0 Hampsh,'/e_
counTy ofF ills lggm,gc;h

On this the N‘Mday of‘ )Q\" , 20 _B_ before me—,—ib\Mg &Q, )k}ga , the undersigned officer,

personally appeared , who acknowledge her/kimsetf to be the

655 i ﬁ: ap SNery €+ g%, of Qs -© A , a corporation, and that
she/he, as

(Title) (Name of Corporation)

such P\Ssis’\un+ %%N’ra ! ﬂ being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the
(Title)

purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the corporation by her/himself as
Pesistant o
IN WITNESS WHEREOF | hereunto set my hand and official seal.

W,
Vg0 “ PV
N 90% oot o Oua,

S@F o o Notary Bublic/ustice-of the-Reece

=2 *33? ® Tz

S BT i gE

. =0 . D=

My Commission expires: ?1 / i Hé «50 R S rbl‘ 5

2 CwNOTARLCQTS

/, ......... P~ \\\
,// E \'\ \



Client#: 497072

ACORD.

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

EASTESEA7

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
11/20/2013

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ﬁgMnEACT
USI Insurance Services LLC [PHON_E 603 625-1100 FAX
AIC, No, Ext): A/C, No):
PO Box 6360 ;Ea%ﬂléoss- ! | e
Manchester, NH 03108-6360 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
603 625-1100 iNnsurer A : Philadelphia Insurance Company 23850
INSURED INSURER B :
Easter Seals NH, Inc.
INSURER C :
Easter Seals NY, Inc. INSURER D -
555 Auburn Street NSURER E.-
Manchester, NH 03103 -
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDLSUBR POLICY POLICY EXP
INSE TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR [WVD POLICY NUMBER (u_ﬂ/nglv%fn MM/DD/YYYY) LiMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK1068435 09/01/2013(09/01/2014| EACH OCCURRENCE 51,000,000
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PR IR e ence) | $100,000
‘ CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | $5,000
X| Professional Liab PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 51,000,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $3,000,000
POLICY R Loc $
A | AUTOMOBILE LABILITY PHPK1068435 09/01/2013|09/01/2014 M oieny o -MT 1,000,000
X| ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
AL OWNED SCHEOULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
X NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
A | X|UMBRELLALIAB | X | occUR PHUB432951 09/01/2013|09/01/2014 EACH OCCURRENCE $15,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $15,000,000
DED I Xl ReTENTION$$10,000 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN ‘TORY LIMITS ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE L I
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| §
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additlonal Remarks Schedule, If more space is required)
**Supplemental Names**: Easter Seals NY, Inc., Easter Seals ME, Inc., STS, Inc., Agency Realty, Inc.,

Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc., The Harbor Schools, Inc., Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitation Center, Inc.,
dba The Farnum Center, Easter Seals VT, Inc., Easter Seals CT, Inc., Webster Place Center, Inc., - The
General Laibility policy includes a blanket automatic Additional Insured endorsement that provides
Additional Insured and a Blanket Waiver of Subrogation status to the Certificate holder, only when there is

(See Attached Descriptions)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH DHHS
29 Hazen Drive
Concord, NH 03301-6504

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

£. 4

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of2
#511324716/M10868299
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Client#: 497072

ACORD.

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

EASTESEA7

DATE (MMWDD/YYYY)
12/26/2012

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certiflcate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policles may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONTACT

USI Insurance Svcs of NE, Inc. F;c_NEo extt: 603 625-1100 [2X val:

PO Box 6360 ADDREss:

Manchester, NH 03108-6360 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC ¥
603 625-1100 msurer A : Philadelphla Insurance Company 23850
INSURED INSURER B : leerty Mutual Insurance Co. 23043

Easter Seals NH, Inc.

INSURER C :
Easter Seals NY, Inc.

INSURER D :
555 Auburn Street INSURER E:
Manchester, NH 03103 .

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

Y El CY EXP

UYR TYPE OF INSURANCE R s POLICY NUMBER MM LImITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK914096 09/01/2012| 09/01/2013 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY R R N ence) | $100,000
| CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | $5,000
| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 1,000,000
] GENERAL AGGREGATE 53,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - coMPioP AGG | $3,000,000
—] POLICY I—[ B Loc $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK914096 9/01/2012(09/01/2013 SOVARED SINGLELIMIT | 4,000,000
| %] any auto r BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
ﬁlOLngvNED iﬁ_*r'EDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
__X__ HIRED AUTOS ON-OWNED 52?55’?&?“""“ $
$
A | X|UMBRELLALIAB | X | occuR PHUB394930 9/01/2012| 09/01/2013 EACH OCCURRENCE $15,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $15,000,000
pep | X| retenions$10,000 s
B | e e L N in WC7611258839013 01/01/2013/01/01/2014 X |76 3" ilits | EX
ANy EE%EEEE%RRIPE%EEEIE}ECUTNEIE NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $1,000,000
DESCRIPTION & OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | 31,000,000
A |Blanket-EDP PHPK914096 09/01/2012|09/01/2013 $3,019,050-$500 Ded.
RC Value Special Form Incl Theft

DESCRIPTICN OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, If more space Is required)

*Supplemental Names**

Easter Seals NY, Inc., Easter Seals ME, Inc., STS, Inc., Agency Realty, Inc., Easter Seals Rhode Island,
inc., The Harbor Schools, Inc., Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitation Center, Inc., dba The Farnum Center,

Easter Seals VT, Inc., Easter Seals CT, Inc., Webster Place Center, Inc.,

- The General Lalbility policy

Includes a blanket automatic Additional Insured endorsement that provides Additional Insured and a Blanket

(See Attached Descriptions)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Director, Division of Public
Health Services,NH DHHS
29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of2
#59165571/M9159329
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BAKER NEWMAN NOYES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH) as of August 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related
consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the
years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Easter Seals NH’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Easter Seals NH’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of August 31, 2012
and 2011, and the consolidated changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 12,
2012 on our consideration of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC



The Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. The consolidating information identified in the contents is presented for purposes of
additional analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the individual
entities, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the consolidating information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

kBa,Ker )\)mmm e Loyes

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company
December 12, 2012



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2012 and 2011

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Program and other accounts receivable, less contractual
allowance of $131,500 in 2012 and $219,900 in 2011,
and allowance for doubtful accounts of $395,000 in
2012 and $1,041,500 in 2011
Contributions receivable, less allowance for
doubtful accounts of $25,000 in 2012 and $25,600 in 2011
Current portion of assets limited as to use
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Assets limited as to use, net of current portion

Fixed assets, net

Property held for sale

Bond issuance costs, net

Investments, at fair value

Beneficial interest in trusts held by others and other assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Lines of credit
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accounts payable to affiliates
Rate reserves
Current portion of deferred revenue
Current portion of interest rate swap agreements
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Deferred revenue, net of current portion
Other liabilities
Interest rate swap agreements, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

See accompanying notes.

012 2011
$ 4,402,187 § 5,017,529
441,980 223,162
9,321,570 10,226,883
491,729 319,711
458,005 842,144
_1.304.173 1.074.366
16,419,644 17,703,795
5,017,773 5,799,466
25,132,481 25,368,864
910,171 505,256
254,390 290,808
13,005,757 11,811,775
6,620,011 5,252,717
$67.360.227 $66,732,681
$ 1,982,604 § 648,463
2,630,935 3,613,387
4,362,192 3,731,257
- 314,557
435,008 1,091,579
1,757,283 1,374,854
734,470 726,083
746,716 774.891
12,649,208 12,275,071
3,778,487 3,867,560
1,168,659 1,151,944
4,401,508 3,315,362
22923934  24.530.741
44,921,796 45,140,678
11,937,759 11,503,651
598,750 594,327
9,901,922 9,494,025
22438431 21,592,003
$61.360.227 $66.,732,681



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2012

Public support and revenue:
Public support:

Contributions

Special events, net of related
direct costs of $618,599

Annual campaigns, net of related
direct costs of $79,441

Bequests

Net assets released from restrictions

Total public support

Revenue:
Fees and grants from governmental
agencies
Other fees and grants
Sales to public
Dividend and interest income
Rental income
Other

Total revenue
Total public support and revenue
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education
Professional education
Direct services
Total program services
Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total functional expenses
Support of National programs

Total operating expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total

1,529,794 § 370,723 $ 62323 $§ 1,962,840
1,114,326 71,451 - 1,185,777
445,604 32,367 - 477,971
127,761 - - 127,761

482,671 (482.671) - ~
3,700,156 (8,130) 62,323 3,754,349
64,356,494 - - 64,356,494
26,783,639 - - 26,783,639
4,057,412 - - 4,057,412
680,465 3,635 - 684,100
140,373 - - 140,373
642.262 - — 642,262
96.660,645 3.635 - 96,664,280
100,360,801 (4,495) 62,323 100,418,629
595,634 - - 595,634
22,251 - - 22,251
88.415.347 - - 88.415,347
89,033,232 - - 89,033,232
8,700,472 - - 8,700,472
1,882,355 - ~ 1.882.355
10.582.827 — - 10,582,827
99,616,059 - - 99,616,059
134.887 — - 134.887
99.750,946 — - 99,750,946
609,855 (4,495) 62,323 667,683



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2012

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted _Restricted Restricted Total
Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps  $ (1,262,396) § - $ - $ (1,262,396)
Net unrealized and realized gains’
on investments 562,646 6,681 - 569,327
Increase in fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others - - 345,574 345,574
Gain on sales and disposals of property,
plant and equipment 4.442 - - 4.442
(695.308) 6.681 345,574 (343.053)
(Decrease) increase in net assets before
effects of discontinued operations (85,453) 2,186 407,897 324,630
Gain from discontinued operations 519,561 2,237 - 521,798
Total increase in net assets 434,108 4,423 407,897 846,428
Net assets at beginning of year 11,503,651 594327  9.494.025 21.592.003
Net assets at end of year $_11,937,759 $_ 598750 $9901,922 $_22,438.431

See accompanying notes.



Creating solutions, changing lives. Easter Seals New Hampshire

Easter Seals

DISABILITY SERVICES

555 Auburn Street

BSINESSN
Manchester, NH 03103-4800
L2070
603.623.8863 phoneytdd
Larry J. Gammon 603.625.1148 fax
President/CEO www.eastersealsnh.org
Business
o he evedds
Awards
° °
Mission:
°

Easter Seals provides exceptional services to
ensure that all people with disabilities or special
needs and their families have equal
opportunities to live, learn, work and play in

their communities.



2013 Easter Seals New Hampshire Board of Directors

Chairman
Jim Bee

Past Chairman
Richard Rawlings

Treasurer
Andrew MacWilliam

Assistant Treasurer
Tim Murray

Secretary
Renee Walsh

Assistant Secretary
Tom Sullivan

Chairman - ME
Dennis Brown

Chairman — NY
Joe DiChiara

Chairman — Farnum
Center

Rob Wieczorek

Chairman - RI
Tracey Colucci

Chairman - CT
Wiley Mullins
Vice Chairman - VT
Sally Garmon

General Counsel &
Assistant Secretary
(non voting member)
Bradford Cook

Members:

Lori Levesque

Timm Runnion
Michael Salter

John Rogers

Dennis Beaulieu
Cynthia Makris
Eleanor Dahar
Charles S. Goodwin
Doris Duhamel-Labbe
Ann-Marie Forrester
Matthew Boucher
Charles Panasis

Sue MacDermott

Leisa Maxwell, MD
Ben Gamache

Rick Courtemanche

11/20/13



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract
Larry Gammon President/CEO $ 352,852 0% $ 0
Elin Treanor CFO $ 240,000 0% $ 0
Tina Sharby Director of Human Resources | $§ 140,000 0% $ 0
Earl Simpson Dentist $ 142,147 6.41% $ 9,112
Laural Dillon Dental Assistant $ 47736 6.41% $ 3,060




Earle W. Simpson Jr. DMD
555 Auburn Street
Manchester, NH 03103
£03-621-3482

Education:

St. Paul's High School, Concord, NH 1978

Princeton University, Princeton, NJ 1983

Tuft's University School of Dental Medicine, Boston Ma 1987

-Work Experiénce:

Dental Director; Easter Seals Dental Clinic Sept. 2009 - present
General Dentist; 22 years private practice May 1988 - Sept. 2009
Dental Director: Merrimack County Nursing Home 1997-present

Associations:

American Dental Association 1983-present

* Delegate and Alternate Delegate

Inducted in the fellowship of International College of Dentistry October 2010
Families in Transition Association July 2010 - present

* Board of Director

NH Dental Society 1988-present

" President, Vice President, Secretary/ Treasurer and Trustee
New England Dental Society 1988-present

Manchester Dental Society 1989-present

"~ Trustee

Affiliations:
Elliot Hospital 1989-present
“Staff Privileges

23



